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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”)
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Nuvoco Vistas
Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit
or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
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accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the standatone ind AS financial statements are free from materiat misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the standalone ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31
March 2017, and its financial performance including other comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

a) The standalone Indian GAAP financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2016, were audited by another auditor whose report dated 3 June 2016 expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements,

b) The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2016 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 Aprif 2015 included in these standalone Ind AS
financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the
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predecessor auditor whose reports for the year ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 dated
9 June 2015 and 3 June 2016 respectively expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
standalone financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles
adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

{2)

(h)

ii.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

In our opinion, there are no matters that may have an adverse effect on the functioning of
the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in ‘Annexure A'; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disctosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Notes 25 and 47 to the standalone Ind
AS financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its standalone Ind AS financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period
from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying on
the management representation we report that the disclosures are in accordance with
books of account maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Management
- Refer Note 50.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
‘Annexure B’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For MZSK & Associates

Chartered Accounta

Partner
Membership No. 118247

Place ; Mumbai
Date : 22;05/)3—
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NUVOCO VISTAS CORPORATION LIMITED (FORMERLY “LAFARGE
INDIA LIMITED")

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nuvoco Vistas
Corporation Limited (“the Company”), as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) (“the Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note.

vishal Vila
Partner
Membership No: 118247
Place : Mumbai

Date : 9 2 o(/lr
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2017]

i

(@) The Company has rmaintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The management has a planned programme for verifying the fixed assets once in every three

years, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of

its assets. Fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year

since the same were verified during the previous year.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties, other than self-

constructed building are held in the name of the Company except for some freehold land and

leasehold land as under:

No. of | Leasehold/ Freehold | Gross Block as at | Net Block as at | Remarks
cases 31% March, 2017 | 312t March, 2017
(Amount in Rs, | {Amount in Rs.
Crores) Crores)
1. Leasehold land 7.10 7.10
2. Freehold land QOut of this we have
not been made
available original
title deeds
aggregating to Rs,
213.46 206.06 14.13 Crores

fi.  The inventory (excluding stocks with third parties) has been physically verified by the
management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have
substantially been confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks
and the book records.

fii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited

Liability Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189

of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (iii) (a)

to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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iv,

vil.

(@

(b}

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in
whom the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act.
Further, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no loans and advances given, investments made and guarantees given by the Company in
accordance with section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of
the Act and the rules framed there under.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating to materials, labour and other items of
cost maintained by the Company pursuant as specified by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act related to
manufacture of cement, ready mix concrete and aggregates and we are of the opinion that
prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not,
however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it
were in arrears, as at 31st March, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise
duty, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on

account, of any dispute except for:
—
X

(K

X
w
i
-
Py
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Period to | Forum
Amount
which the | where Remarks, if
Name of the statute | Nature of dues amount dispute is | any
Rs. (in relates pending
Crores)
The Central Excise Differential excise 2009-10 nggﬁ; te
Act,1944 duty on MRP value 82.15 authorities
Amount is net
Disallowance of Various of protest
Cenvat credit on 17.97 %g?l'?g to Appellate payment made
goods/ services ’ authorities | ofpe 812 cr
2002-03 & Amount is net
Excise Duty/ 2007-08 to | Various of protest
Additional excise duty 63.76 2009-10 & | Appellate payment made
on NFR Sales ) 2011-12to | authorities | of ps. 0.1cr
2015-16
Variol Amount is net
5
Other Excise Dues 2.36 %g}g:l to Appellate of protest
. i authorities | Pa¥yment made
of Rs. 0.44 cr
2000-01, Amount is net
2003-04 to | Various
I:: Eftnt;glsgates Central Sales Tax 4.34 2007-08 & Appellate of protest
’ "7 [2010-11 to | authorities | PAyment made
2011-12 of Rs. 6.54 cr
:: ;%023 %ql Various Amount is net
. - il
.‘;.’g;' :l::i State Sales Sales Tax 27.04 and 2008- Appellate of protest
| 2009 to authorities | Payment made
2013-2014 of Rs. 22.30 cr
Amount is net
. Various of protest
Various State Entry 2000-01 to
Tax Act Entry Tax 65.12 | 2015-16 | APpellate | payment made
authorities | ofpe 91 cr
Amount is net
. Various of protest
Various State 2008-2009
VAT Tax Act Value Added Tax 12.19 | to 2014-15 Appell?t_e payment made
authorities | of Rs. 0.16 cr
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Assistant
The Customs Act, 1996-97 to | Commission
1961 Customs Duty 14.4411998-99 | er Customs,
Mumbai
Service Tax liability .
. Various
. on income earned 2009-2019
Finance Act, 1994 from own your wagon 0.89 | to 2014-15 :35:: :'?ttizs
Scheme
. . Amount is net
Serwqe Tax - Outdoor 2002-03 to Various of protest
Catering/ Cargo 0.11 | 2005-06 Appellate d
handling, etc. : authorities | Payment made
of Rs. 0.009 cr
. o Addl.
Service Tax Liability 2010-11 to Commission
on VSAT charges 3.34 | 2014-15 er, Kolkata
Non-Payment of Various
Service Tax on 0.30 2009-2015 | Appellate
account of gross up ' authorities
Non-Payment of
Service Tax on Asst
consideration C oL Amount is net
received from Parent g??fmlssmn of rotest
Company towards 0.33 2009-2014 Service P d
reimbursement of ’ Tax payment made
rent for uSing Mur;]ba] of Rs. 0.63 cr
€Ommon space on cost
sharing basis
Chattisgarh Energy Development 2005-06 to | Supreme
Adhiniyam Act 1981 Cess 2.41 | 2015-16 Court
Chattisgarh
{Adhosanrachana, Infrastructure & 2013-14, ;
Vikas Avam Environment 1.39 2014-15 & I;:gl; ct?r urt,
Paryavaran) Upkar Development Cess ) 2015-16 P
Adhiniyam, 2005
Rajasthan Finance . 2012-13to | High Court,
Act, 2008 Environment Cess 6.87 | 2014-15 | Jodhpur
viii, In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not defaulted in repayment of dues to the fin

ix.  The Company did not raise an
(including debt instruments) an
in paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order

X. During the course of our audit, examination of th
out in accordance with the generally accepted au

ancial institution, bank or debenture holders.

¥y money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
d term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated
are not applicable to the Company,

e books and records of the Company, carried
diting practices in India, and according to the
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Xi.

xii.

xiti.

xiv.

information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, except in case of
Nirchem Cement Limited which made a private placement of fully convertible debentures
during the year pre-merger with the Company and has complied with the requirements of
section 42 of the Act. The amount raised has been used for the purposes for which they were
raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

Regjstration No\i
X\[()D\/p
itas Divadkar

Membership No. 118247

Date :;{ 05

Place : Mumbai
s



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017
(AN amiomints ars it INR crores, tnfess stherniose stated)

. Asat As at Asat
Farticulars NoteNo- | g March 2017 | 31 Manh 2016 | 1apri1 201
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{a} Property, plant and equipment 2 5,087.32 3,646.66 3.583.82
{b) Capinal work-in-progress 12798 111.65 24677
() Investment property 3 1.3 1.5 1.5
{d) Goodwill 4 2,443.86 549.59 549,59
{e)  Other intangible assels 4 1.383.38 1647 19.65
) Intangible assets under development 1516 1258
{g) Financial assets
{i} Investments 5 005 0.05 -
{ii) Loans 6 - - 012
{ti1} Other non-current financial assets 7 12881 7734 127.69
{h)  Other non current assets 8 42387 27912 29617
9,611.56 4,695.47 4,827.40
CURRENT ASSETS
{a}  Inventories 9 361.04 458,19 H0.25
) Financial assets
(i} Current investments [[+] 41219 - -
(i) Trade receivables 1n 440 523.37 458.19
(iii} Cash and cash equivalenis 12 71.75 1739 294,40
{iv) Other bank balances 13 5.8 - 3.9
{v} Loans 14 199 348 3.66
{vi) Other current financial assets 15 100.31 38.00 7058
{c)  Other current assels 16 276.88 153.15 243156
1,671.56 1,497.58 1,514.60
TOTAL ASSETS 11,285.42 6,192.05 6,342.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(@}  Equity share capital 17 150.00 456.41 456.41
{b}  Otherequity 3,798.93 3,748.38 351841
394695 4,204.79 3,974.82
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a} Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 13 4,298.46 150.00 300.00
(i) Other non-current financial liabilities 9 0.76 7.67 8.50
{b) Provisions (non-current} 20 48.65 27.83 28.72
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21 1,224.38 125.39 41.11
5,572.25 31239 378.33
CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings n 1592 15250 506.96
(ii) Trade payables 23 731999 626.09 588.35
(iii) Other current financial liabélities 214 399.60 401.47 424.69
& Provisions (current) 25 276.50 250.15% 200.36
(¢} Other current liabilities 26 33z 245.66 263.49
1,764.22 1675487 1,983.85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,285.42 6,193.05 6342.00
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuveco Vistas
Corporation Limited
& Assaciates e — CIN: U26930MH1999PLC118229

snrthinls

Suk#tu Nareshbhai Shah
Director
DIN: 07211233

WA

ivadkar
Hartner

Membership No. 118247

¥

Place : Mumbai Place ;| Mumbai
Date: 22 May 2017 + 12 May 2007

£




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts are tn INR crores, tinless otherwise stated)

Tarticulats

Note No, 2016-17 201516
INCOME
Revenue from operations 27 583246 5,958.16
Other income 28 2927 39.09
Total [ncome 5,861.73 5,997.25
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 29 1,111.99 111142
Purchase of stock in trade 30 14.01 10,21
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 3 27.59 (30.99)
Power and fuel 847.17 889.03
Freight and forwarding charges 1,361.40 1,372.25
Excise duty on sale of goods 67548 679.63
Employee benefits expense 32 289,97 300.10
Depreciation and amortization expense 34 3252 250.46
Finance costs a5 21707 87.90
Other expenses 33 776.48 91287
[Total expenses 564778 5.582.38
Profit before exceptional items and tax 213.95 414,37
Exceptional items 54 17.81 42,87
Profit before tax 196.14 371.50
Tax expense:
1. Current Tax (MAT) 7 57.01 53.60
2. MAT credit entitlement 37 (57.01) {53.60)
3. Deferred tax (excluding MAT credit entitlement) 37 123,75 140.81
4. Tax expense relating to earlier years 37 (93.28) (0.16)
Total tax expense 0.47 140.65
|Profit after tax 165.67 230.85
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCl)
|1 [tems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
i. Remeasurements gain/(losses) of post-employment benefit obligation 019 (4.12)|
ii. Income tax related to above {0.07)) 1.43
0.12 (2.69)]
JII Items that witl be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
i, Deferred gain/(losses} on cash flow hedge 0.09 .77
ii. Income tax related to above {0.03) {0.96)
0.06 1.81
Other comprehensive income for the year 018 (0.88)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 165.85 229.97
|Earnings per equity share 36
1. Basic (INR) 208 306
2. Diluted (INR) 2.08 506
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuvoco
Vistas Corporation Limited
F: K & Associates CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229
frtered Mecowntants
Firm Regisation No. 105 M
]
B tu Nareshbhai
Ujj a Shah
Ov // MD try CEO Director
DIN: 01737515 DIN: 07211283 ﬁ
ivadkar -
Q
Membership No. 118247
Aja
Company tary
Place : Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 May 2017 Date : 22 May 2017




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2017
(AN mownts are in INR crores, tinfess othertoise stated)

Il’arliculars 201617 2015-16
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES .ot o e | e
Profit before tax 196.14 371.50
Adfustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 312352 250.46
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss {(Net} JOR2S] | 141
Provision for bad/doubtful debts and advances 5.50 7.83
Bad debts 0.00 0.0
Provision for indirect taxes / legal cases 16.20 51.39
Provision/liabilities no longer required, written back [rries}] | 81.24)
Property, Plant & Equipment/CWIP written aff 727 9.88
Profit on sale of Properly, Plant & Equipment (net) - (0.28)
Cain on sale of current investments {1419) {13.02)
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 222) (1.22)
Stares and spares written off - 10.54
Interest income on bank deposits (30 (15.600|
Intterest income on others. {4.15) {3.56)
Finance costs 231.17 §7.50
71739 67600
Operating profit before working capital adjustments:
Adji Sfor workiug capital :
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventaries 97.15 {28.48)
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables 7364 {73.02)
(Increase) / Decrease in loans and advances and other non current assets {14018} 2334
Increase in trade / other payables, provisions and other liability 23394 112,98
981.54 710.82
Incorne Tax paid (Net) {59.72) £50.91)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 922,22 659.91
| B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING AGTIVITIES | 50 10 0 it T i | B |
Payment for purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment (141.37) (228.22)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets - 0.43
Investment in subsidiary - (0.65)
Purchase of current investments {2,366.26)] {2414.50)]
Proceeds from sale of current investments 197048 2427.52
|Loans given during the year 1.76 (0.69)
{intorest received 6.44 20.40
MNET CASH FLOWS USED [N INVESTING ACTIVITIES (195.11)
() CASH FLOW FRO FINANCING ACTIVITIES B e i e e ST
|Repayment of borrowings (500.00)
Interest paid 91.77)
MNET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES {S91.77)
MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+C) (126.97),
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 298.36
Additions through amalgamation -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 12 and 13) * 17139
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet
(—ash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet [Nole 12 & 13]
Cash on hand 0.05 050
Cheques/drafts on hand 296 49.90
Bank balances (including bank deposils) 7392 lﬁ
Cash and Cash equivalents as restated as at the year end 76.93 171.39

MNotes :

Ca5es.

 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

riner
|Membership No. 115247

Place: Mlumbai
Dale: 22 May 2017

Mace: Mumbai

CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229
or MZ3 & Associates
[Chartered Accountants
Fired, Regisfration No, 1 ¢
0/& / Ujjwal B;
Ul\ MD & Co o)
Vishal Vilas Divadkar 1 DIN: 1737515

ry

Date: 22 May 2017

* Includes cash collateral of Rs. 5.18 crore (Previous year Nil) as at the balance sheet date maintained by the Company for collateral of disputed indirect ta:

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Methed' as set out in the Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statementd".

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited

Suketu Nareshbhai Shah
Director
DIN: 07211283
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

A.

b)

Company Information

Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (Formerly known as Lafarge India Limited) (“the Company”)
is a limited company domiciled and headquartered in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office is located at Equinox Business Park,
Tower-3, 4th Floor, LBS Marg, Off BKC, Kurla (West), Mumbai — 400070. The Company is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of Cement and Ready Mix along
with trading and manufacturing of Aggregates. The Company caters mainly to the domestic
market.

The financial statement of the Company for the year ended 31™ March, 2017 was authorized for
issue in accordance with a resolution of Directors on 22nd May, 2017.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The financial
statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the Companies
(Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended), notified under section 133 of the Act and
other relevant provisions of the Act. These financial statements are the first financial statements
of the Company under Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April, 2015. Refer note 58 for
an explanation of how the transition from Indian GAAP (IGAAP} to Ind AS has affected the
Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

These are separate financial statements of the Company as per Ind AS 27. The financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)

¢ defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. It is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, related
discounts, incentives and volume rebates. it includes excise duty and excludes value added tax/
sales tax.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

c)

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. Interest
income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the same is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost, except the freehold land used for mining. All other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost of the items net of
depreciation and impairment losses (if any). Acquisition cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to getting the asset ready for intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred,

Items of spare parts that meets the definition of ‘property, plant and equipment’ is recognised
as property, plant and equipment. The depreciation on such an item of spare part will begin
when the asset is available for use i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. In case of a spare part, as it
may be readily available for use, it may be depreciated from the date of purchase of the spare
part.

Capital work in progress {‘CWIP’) is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any.
All the direct expenditure related to implementation including incidental expenditure incurred
during the period of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is accounted as CWIP
and after commissioning the same is transferred / allocated to the respective item of property,
plant and equipment.

Pre-operating costs, being indirect in nature, are expensed to the statement of profit and loss as
and when incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or
when retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurren




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

d)

The Company has a policy of capitalising overburden cost if the overburden removal exceeds
normal annual overburden removal by more than 50% and the total amount of stripping cost
related to excess removal is more than Rs. 0.50 Crores.

Transition to ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the IGAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation (other than on mining land) is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate the cost
of assets, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives. Components having
value significant to the total cost of the asset and life different from that of the main asset are
depreciated over its useful life. The useful lives have been determined based on technical
evaluation which are higher than those specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act; 2013, in
order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The useful lives so determined are as follows:

Useful life (in years)

Asset Type

Buildings and roads 5 to 50
Plant and machinery 1to30
Railway sidings and locomotives 30
Office equipment 5to0 10

Vehicles 5
Furniture and fixtures 5to 10

Leasehold land Over the lease period

Mining land Amortised on the unit of production
method based on extraction of limestone
from mines

Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in
proportion of actual quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable
mineral reserves.

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired / disposed off during the year
is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal. Cost of lease-hold
land is amortized equally over the period of lease.

Residual values, useful life of assets and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

Investment property
Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to contmue with
the carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised in its Indian G
statements as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. 1 April 2015.
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e)

investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the
date of original purchase.

The Company, based on management estimate, depreciates the building over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act,
2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and nc future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred,

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the IGAAP and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of the intangible assets.

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives based on
underlying contracts where applicable, except for mining rights

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The useful lives so
determined are as follows:
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f)

Asset Type Useful life {in years)

Mining Rights Amortised on the unit of production
method based on extraction of
limestone from mines but restricted
upto the lease period (in case of
Leasehold Land)

Supplier agreement (Finite) Upto the validity of the
Contract

Trademark (Finite) 10

Software (Finite) 5

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level, and whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:
1. In case of individual asset, at higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use;
and
2. In case of cash-generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent
cash flows), at the higher of the cash-generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and the
value in use,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account. if no such transactions can be idgatiffes an
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g

h)

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. In any case the growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth
rate for the products/industries in which the entity operates.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to
OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable
amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Leases

Company as a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental-to ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
the profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant partion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for
the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Company as a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset till such time the asset. for
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Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that a company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or
as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad
categories:

1. Financial assets at amortised cost

2. Financial assets at fair value

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entire in the
statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit and loss) (FVTPL), or recognized in
other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income) (FVTOCI)

Financial asset at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if following two conditions are met:
1. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
2. The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest {(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR} method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value
Debt instruments
A debt instrument is classified as at fair value through OCI if following two conditions are met:
1. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contract
flows and selling the financial assets, and
2. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI
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Debt instrument included within the fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income {OCI}.

All other investment in debt instruments not measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as
described above are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration, recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at fair value through profit or loss. For
all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such election
on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at fair value through other
comprehensive income, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Profit and loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments includedc within the fair value through profit or loss category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's statement of
financial position} when:
1. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
2. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or
b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
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Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the following:
1. Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
2. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOC!);

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

1. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those
default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date); or

2. Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the financial instrument).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables.

Under the simplified approach, the company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio
of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed defauit rates over
the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical cbserved default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance hased on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2. Loans and borrowings
3. Financial guarantee contracts
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee, Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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C. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to
hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment

- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formallv designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged,
hedge ratic and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in QCl in the
cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk
in forecast transactions and firm commitments. The ineffective portion relating to foreign
currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to
commodity contracts is recognised in other income or expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCl are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial mcome or financial expense is
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k)

carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or
rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OC! remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the
foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

The Company accounts for investment in subsidiaries and Joint venture at Cost in its separate
financial statements.

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures:

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures are separated into liability and equity components based
on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible debentures, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation
criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of
associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible debentures shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. All the grants related to an expense
item are recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When grants relates to an assets it is
recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on the rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the entity operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognised in equj
in the statement of profit and loss,
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Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their corresponding carrying
amounts for the financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:
1. deductible temporary differences;
2. the carry forward of unused tax losses; and
3. the carry forward of unused tax credits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as
current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company
reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to
the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal income tax
during the specified period.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and Net Realisable Value (NRV).

Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringi

basis.
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Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the actual level of production which
approximates normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

Stores, spares and other supplies: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis. Items of stores and spares that does not meet the definition of ‘property, plant
and equipment’ is recognised as a part of inventories.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Net Realisable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated
absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised
during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Retirernent benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to
be made to a separately administered fund. The Company also has additional death benefit
scheme for specific set of employees. This death benefit scheme is unfunded.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit method. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligati
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q)

r)

s Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
¢ Netinterest expense or income

Other Long-term employee benefits

Other long term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss for the period in which the employee has rendered services. The expenses are recognised at
the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation technique.
Actuarial gains and loss in respect of other long term benefits are charged to the statement of
profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by
the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Operating Segment:

The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business Segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured
consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

The Operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of
the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have
been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the
segment. Inter Segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily
determined based on market/fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which
relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocated to segments on a reasonable basis have
been included under "unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities".

Provisions, Contingent liahilities, Contingent assets and Commitments:
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obllgatlon When the Company expects some or all of a provusu)n o he




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

t)

u)

separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

A present cobligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outfiow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;

A present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;

A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources
is remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit
for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of
potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The presentation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Ind AS which requires
the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Such estimates and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.
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Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following
notes together with the accounting policies:

Note 39 - Current tax expense

Note 40 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations

Note 52 - Provisions and contingencies

Note 4 — impairment of assets (both financial and non-financial}
Note 22 - Site restoration provision

Note 44 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Note 2 — Useful life of Property, plant and equipment

Note 4 — Useful life of Other intangible assets

Current and non-current classification -
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
1. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period,
Or
4. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
1. itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
2. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Itisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,
Or
4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency) The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee ({INR), which is company's fu
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
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Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at functional currency, using the foreign
exchange rate at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical
reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the
date of the transaction.

At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
functional currency using the foreign exchange rate at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss an the change in fair value of the item{(i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or the statement of
profit and loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income or the statement of profit
and loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
1. Inthe principal market for the asset or liability,
Or
2. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
1. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical
Liabilities.
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3. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

Exceptional items

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the financial statements.

Business combinations under common control
Common control business combinations include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or
businesses, between entities within a group.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for
using the pooling of interests method. Under pooling of interest method, the assets and
liabilities of the combined entity are reflected at their carrying amounts, the only adjustment
that are made are to harmonize accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods are restated as if
the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if business
combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from
that date.

The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the
transferor is transferred to capital reserve and presented separately from other capital reserves
with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes.

aa) Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule 1, unless otherwise stated. Any amount
appearing as Rs.0.00 represents amount less than Rs.50,000.
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bb) Standards issued but not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the
Company

Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

(Amendment) Rules, 2017 {the ‘Amendment rules’) on 17 March 2017, notifying amendment to
Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

The amendment to Ind AS 7 introduces an additional disclosure that will enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

These amendments shall come into force on the 1st day of April, 2017 and Company shall apply
the amendments in its financial statements for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2017.

During initial application of the amendment in Ind AS 7, Company will have to give reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from
financing activities.
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Nuveoco Vistas Corporation Limited {formerly known as “Lafarge India Limited”)

Notes to financial statements foc the year ended 31 March, 2017

[All ammonnks are in INR crores, uiless otherivise stated)

3. Investment property

Description Amount
Cost as at 1 April 2015 (A) tE
Adiditions -
Disposals/iransfer a
Cont s at 31 March 2016 (C) 1.59
Additions
Disposals/iransfer
Cost as at 31 March 217 (B) 15¢
Accumulaled depreciation as at 1 April 2015 (8) =
Deprevialion for the year o
Disposals/imnsfor -
Accunrulated depreciation as at 31 March 2016 (D) .08
Depreciation for the year 008
Disposuls/inansfor
Accummulated depreciation as at 71 March 307 (Fy 0.16
Net carrylag amount av at 1 April 2018 (A)-{B) 1.5%
Net cﬂna amount as at 31 March 2016 (C)- (D) 1.51
INet carrying amount av at 31 March 2017 (E)- (P} I 143

For invesiment properly exisling us on the date of trangithon the compuny has waed previous GAAP velue a3 deemed voat. The Company hars received indepeadent broker's quote foe purchase of the investment properly ol Rs. 1.59

crores {previous year Re. 1.59 crores).

4, Goodwill and Other intangible assets

* Consulenad vs deerrund cost at 1 Aprl 2015

# There has bevn un mdjustment on transition date. Refer note 56 o lronsition 1o IND-AS 101 for det

Other Intangible Amsets
Dewcription Non Compete Supphiers Goodwill
Software Mining rights Trade Mark Agrotment Agreement Total

Cost as at1 April 2015 (A) {(Refer Note below) 39.65 1781 10.00 71.90 - 139.56 140113
Additions 52 ) 1.66

Disposals/ sdjuslments L - - {0.60)

Cost as al 31 March 2016 (C) 41.57 015 10.00 71.90 - T43.62 14n.2
Additions - 1433 - - - pERC S

Adi due to Business Convbi ( Refor none 323 s 86207 406.66 - 17.78 1.376.51 18427
Dis, |5/ edjustawnts {0.05) - - 2 5 {0.05) -
Cost as at 4 October 2016 () 4152 896,55 506.66- 71.90 17.78 1,534.41 3,293.50
Adddivas 14.55 - .55 -
Disposals/ adjusimwnts {0 00); g £0.00)| -
Cost as al 31 March 2017 (G} 56.07 596,55 506.66 7150 17.78 1,540.96 3,295.50
Accumulated amortisalion ar at 1 April 215 (B) r.ss 613 10.00 N - 119.91 851.654
Amartisation for the period 6.26 1.58 . 78

Disposaks/adjust nwnts {060} . {0.60);

A d an at 31 March 2016 (D) 7. 7 10,00 7L - 12215 851.64
Amortisstion for the periosd 0.61 0.7 138

Disposals/udjustments (h05H - = - {0y -
Accumulated amortisatlon 40 at 4 October 2016 (F) 38.10 BAS 10,00 71.90 - 125.48 B5L64
Amertisalion [or the period 073 $30 248 T1r 378

Disposals/ udjusiments - - -

Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2017 (H) 38.85 17.78 3483 790 222 165.58 85164
Net carryling amount as at 1 April 205 (A}~ (B} 797 11.68 - - - 19.65 549.59
Net carrying amount ae at 31 March 2016 {C)- (D} 4.03 1244 - - . 1647 549.59
Net carrying amount 48 at Ovtober 4, 2016 (E)- (F) 342 B38.07 496.66 - 17.78 140893 2 HIBE
Net carrylng amoant as at 31 March 2017 (G (H) 17.22 878.77 471,83 5 15.56 136338 2.443.86
Nole
The Company hus avaibed Lhe dovmed cost enemption in relation to the intngible wssels un the dole of transition (i.e L Apeil 2015), Refer below (aa e rss black value and Lhe socumulated amartisalion on April 1, 2015 under the
previous GAAP

Deacription Grom Block Accamulated Met Block®

Goodwill 1A400.23 LA 549,59

Software 3945 KK 7.97

Muting Rgvs 4 1532 613 319

Teade Mark jLeled) 1o .

Moo Compete Apreenwnt 71.90

Total 1,53.30



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financlal statesnents for the year ended 31 March, 2017

(Al amtoreants are in INR crores, unless othertvise stated)

Impairment testing of goodwill with indefiniie lives

Goodwill pertains to the two CGUs below, which ore also op g, aned reporiable segments, for
b Comem CGU
» Ready Mix CGU

'3 Testing:

Carrying amount of goodwill perlains 1o vuch of the CGUs:

Cement RMX
Coodwlll 2785 133.58 123.58 424.01 426.01 426,00

The Company performed its annwal impaitment lest for yoars eaded 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 respectively amd in accordance wit® IND AS 101 at the date of trunsition (0 IND AS i.e 1 April 2015, No Goodwill impairment was.
doemaesl nevessory as ol 1 Aprit 2019,

k Cement CGU
The recoverable amaunt of the Comenl COU, RadAXICrs. asat 31-Mar-17, has been determines based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections cowering o five-yeur period. The projected cash Flows have heen updated
10 reflect the demand for Cemwenl, The pre-tux discount rute applind to cash flow projections for impairment twaling during the currenl yvar is 15.06% and cash Mows beyond the fivo-year period re extrapolated using o 3.0% growth rate

that is the same a3 the long-term average growth rate for the indusiry, [L was concludued that the fair value less costs of disposal excewded the value in use end hence Lhere is no impairment.

li- Ready Mix CGU

The recoveruble amaum of the Ready mix CGLU, Rs.689 Crs. ay al 3-har-17, has been determined based on a value in use cakeulalion using cash flow projections from financial budgets covering a five-year pericd. The projected cash
Nows have been updaled to reflect the demand for Ready mix. The pre-tax discount rate upplicd to cush flow projections for impairment Lesting during the current year is 15.06% und cash flowa beyond the five-yoar period are
extrapaluted using a 3.0% growth cote tht is the same us tho long-leem average growth rate for th industry. It was concluded thut the fair value less costs of disposal exceeded he valug in use amd honce there is no impairment.

Key assumptions used for value In ase calculations M
The calculation of value in use for both units is mast sensitive (v the fallowing assumplions:
(1) Sales Growth rule

(2) Row Malerial prive inflation
() Murket growth rute

Sales Growth Rate - Managemenl expecis.a shable sobes growih rale over the forevust perica, the munagement further ex pects the Company position in relative Lo its comp b Hlowing sales g torgets loken by
the Company.
Raw Materlal Price Inflaon Past maleriul price are used as il [ {i pri

Macket growih rate - Manageawnl oxpects |he Compary podivien in Cement 4 RMX businuss Lo be stable over the forecast poricd, the manogenient further expeia the Company position in relalive to its competilors Lo sieenpthen.
fullowing sales apgressive turgs taken by the Company.

Sensitivity to changes In Jesumptions

The imy T the key plioss for the ble amount are discussed below

Sales Growth Rate- Manogement recognises the elfect of new entrant and sdditional capucity exparsion of exisling competilors as not to huve material adwerse impoct on the [onwasts.

Raw Material Price inflatton- e s dered the ibnlily ul greater thue forecest incroases in row muterial price inflalon. This may occur i uMicipated aegulatory changes result in on increase in demand that

P
cannot be met by supplises. I prices of raw muterils incrvase g,rw:m than il forovast price inflation, then the RMX CCU will have 1o pass on such incrase ta the custamer, for Cement COU raw nuderiol prives do nol vary
significanlly,

Market growth rate -Bused on industrial data and infrastructure growih oction Laken by the povernment, the Company is of the vivw that the grow th vate will be higher Lhan the forecast estimated by the Company.
Whike iLis unlikely for all the sbove assumplions 10 niove adverscly Logether, it would roquire a significant incresse/ ducrease to resulf inan impairment charge.




Nuvoce Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as “Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
{All amounnits are i INR croves, unless othenivise stated)

Asat As at As at
Faiculars 1 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

5. Non current investments
Unquoted, valued at cost unless stated otherwise

al ot ia subsidiazy ¢

pany

50.000 {31 March 2006 - 50000, 1 April 2013 Nil) equity shares of Rs. 10/~ cach fully paid-up in Rima Eastern
Cement Limited {formerly known as Lafarge Eastern India Limited) 0.05 0.03 -

b. Investment in joint venture

863,300 (31 March 2016 - 861,300, 1 April 2015 - 863,300) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in Wardha

Vaalley Coal Fivld Private Limited (Rofer Note below) 0.86 0.86 0.86
Less; Provision for impairment {0.86) (0.86) (0.848)

0.05 0.05 -
Note :

The Ministry of Coal had allotied u coal block in the slate of Maharashtra o a consortium in which {he Company is a ber. The Company plans to carty tut mining activilics
through Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Pevate Limiled, a joint venture Company incorporated in India as a special purpose vehicle. The Company's ownership in the jointly controlled
enlity is 19.14%. The other owners in Lhe joint vesture being [ST Sleel & Power Limited (53.59%) and Ambuja Coments Limited (27,27%),

In prior years, the allotment of the coal block has been canvelled and the Joint Venture (JV) vompany has been show caused for allegedly notachieving Lhe progress milestones in the
development ofthe mine. Deallocation of the coal block has been challenged hefore the Hon'ble Delhi High Count andihe matteris subsjudive, The guarantees given by the J¥ hos also
been soupht Lo be inveked but the sume has been stayed by the Hon'ble Dedhi High Court subject o the guarantee being kept alive, Subsequently such guarantee fumnished by the
vompany has been vancelled, (Refer nate 47)

<. lavestment in others

I, Eqaity investment (at FYTOCT)

1,925,924 (31 March 2016 - 1,925,924, 1 April 2015 - 1,925,924) Class A equily shares of Ra, 10/- cach (ully paid-up

in ¥$ Lignite Powoer Private Lid, i 1.9 193

Ii. Debt investment {at FVTPL)
4,828,298 (31 March 2016 - 4,828,298, 1 April 2015 - 4,828,298) 0.01% cumulative class A redeemable preference
shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up in VS Lignile Power Private Lid, 443 183 +83

Less: Provision for impaicment (6.78) (6.76} {6.76)

6. Loans

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to related parly - - 0,12
Sub total {a} - - 012

Doubtfal

Loans (o related party# 1.07 1.07 -
Less: Proviston for doubLiul loans {1.07) {1.079 -
Sub total {hy - . -

Total [at+b) - - .12

# Represents inlercorporate lean given Lo Wardha Vaalley Ceal Field Privale Limiled for working capital requirements.

7. Other non-current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good

Deposils with govi. autharilics and others 12881 T 127.69
Sub Lotal {a) 12881 778 127.69
Doubtinl

Depuosits with Covl, authoritics and olhers 236 50 T30
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits (2.36) 2.23) (3.30)
Sutr Lotal (b} . N E
Total (a+b) 128.81 77.84 127.69




Nuvoce Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Naotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(AN amounls are in INR crores, tiless ollierise shted)

artic As at Asg at Asat
P fass 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
8. Other non current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 4622 SIS 66.95
Advances recoverable 0.33 032 1H
Prepaid expenses 120 087 038
Loang/advances Lo employces - - 0.58
Bulances with excise authorities 031 - 045
Industrial p ional J 228.78 17384 17318
Advance invome-Lax {net of provision for taxation) 146.53 52.74 55.27
Sulb Lotal {2) 42337 M2 298.17
Doubtful
Capital advances 1.26 1.2% 1.26
Less: Provision for doubtlul advances {1.26) (1,26} {1,26)
Sub total {b) - - -
Advances recoverable - - 0.62
Less: Provision for doublful advances . - 062)
Sub total (c) - -
Total (a+b¥c) 423.87 279.12 298.17
9, Inventoties
{Valued at cost ar NRV whichever is lower)
Raw materials 4151 69.23 50.89
{incledes in transit and stock wilh third party Rs.6.30 crore (31 March 2016 - Rs.8.18 crore, 1 April 2015 - Rs.7.61
crone}
Work-in-progress 128.88 136,46 12042
(includes in Lransit Rs.833 crore (31 March 2016 - Rs.4.87 crore, 1 April 2015 - Rs.6.10 crore)
Finished goods 5046 047 35.32
{includes in Lransit - Rs. 0.96 (31 March 2006 - Rs.4.36crore, T April 2015 - Rs.10.57 crore)
Stores and Spare Paris, Packing Material and Fuel 140.19 182.03 H4z
(includes in transit and stock with third parties Rs. 1105 crore (31 March 2016 - Rs, .08 crore, 1 April 2013 -
Rs.25.18 vrore)
Total 361.04 458.19 440.25
10 Current investments
Quoted, valued at fair value threugh statement of profit and loss
[nvestments in Mutual Funds
Reliance Liguid fund (1,778.68 Units) 020 - -
5Bl Premier Liquid Fund {2,166.93 Units) 0.55 - -
ICICH Pru Institutional Liquid Plan -5t Growith (3,783,333 Unils) 90.86 - -
HDFC Liguid Fund - Growth (190,682 Units) 1.0 - .
Tota Liguid Fund - Regular Plan - Growth {230760.726 Units) 66.99 . .
Birla Cash Plus- IP - Growth (1542436.124 Units) 4018 - .
5Bl Premicr Liyuid Fund - Super Institutional - Growth (154758.617 Units) 3940 . .
DSP Blackeock Liyuidity Fund- [P-Doily Growth (176894428 Units) 1.0 - .
UTI Money Market - IP - Growith (382460.925 Unils) 6949 - -
Taotal 41219 - -
Aggregate book value of quoled investments 41219 - .
Aggpregate market value of uated investownts Hiw - -
11, Trade receivables
Secured, considered goud 13490 187.07 15705
Unsecured, considered good 932 33630 30114
Doubtful 56.25 5537 027
00,47 37874 308.46
Provision for doubtful trade hl (56.25) (3357 {50.27)
Total 444,22 52337 458.1%

No trade or ather reveivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company cither seveeally or jointly with any sther person, Nor any trade or other receivable ane due from

firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a pactner, a director ot & member,




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017

{All mnoutts are it INR crores, wuless otherwise stated)

Asat As at As at
"articulars
P 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
12. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 005 0.0 0.10
Balances with bank

On current accounts 47.13 4839 56.4

Duposils with original maturity of less than three months 2161 73.00 164.96
Chegues/drafts ot hand 296 49.90 72.90
Total LTS 17139 294.40
Note:
Short term deposils are made {or varying periods depending on the diate cash ceg s of the C ¥ and carns Interest at respective short lerm deposits rates,
13. Other bank balances
Earmarked (restricted) balances with banks for:

Channel financing facility of dealors 196
Collateral for dispuled indirect tax cases 518 .

Total 5.18 - 3.96
14. Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and pdvanues (o refated parties - 176 082
Loans/advances to employees 1.99 1.72 2.3
Sub total {a) 1% 348 .66
Doubitful
Loans and advances Lo refaled partics - - 0.16
Provision for doublilul advances - {0.16)
Sub total (b) -
Tatal {a+b) 1.9 348 3.66
15. Other current financial assels
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Interest acerued on fixed deposits 083 00z 1.22
Dutivalive dassets {Refur Nole 43) 000 a0
Deposits with gow. authorities and others 99.48 87.96 §9.36
Sub towal (a) 10031 18.00 70.58
Doubtful
Deposits with govi. authorities and olhers 447 449 1.54
Provision for doubliul advances (447) {1.49) {1.54)
Sub total (b) - - -
Total {a+b} 10031 88.00 7058
16. Olher current assets
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
VAT revoverable E7A H 5236 nn
Balanwes with vxvise aulhgrities 3768 43.10 60.92
Advances recoverable 62.78 2532 62.00
Fiscal incentive reveivable 12036 1% 7302
Other rocoivables 5.66 432 199
Advance income-tax (not of prevision for taxation) 730 530 530
Prepaid expenses 1075 8.30 712
Total Fe ] 253.15 24356




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 32 March, 2017
{All aimoumis are int INR crores, unless otherwise staled)

articn] As at As at As at

Busticalars 1 March 2007 31 March 206 1 April 2015

17. Equity share capital

Autharized*

:ﬂ,un.un {31 March 2016 - 3,801,110,000 shares, 1 April 2015 - 801,110,000 shares) equily shares of Rs. 10/- 750111 380111 18011t

:,.?’?P;(::(:‘.m {31 March 2016 - 1,000,000,000 shares, 1 April 2015 - 1,000,000,000 shares) preference shares of Rs. 100000 1,00000 1,000.00
8.501.11 48011 £801.11

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

150,000,000 (31 March 2016 - 436,412,778 shares, 1 April 2015 - 456,412,778 shares) cyuity shares of Rs, 10/-each 150,00 456,41 15641

150.00 45641 45641

“The movement in authorised and issued share capital during the year is due te merger scheme { Refer note no.51)

{a) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

‘The Company has onty one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share, Each helder of cquity shares is ontithed to one vote per share. The shareholdersare entitled (o
dividends in Tndian Rupees, proposed by the Board of Dirvctors and subject Lo the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meclings,

In the evenl of liguidation of Lhe Company, the bulders of equily shares will be entitled to receive [

£ il

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

{b) Shares held by Nirma Limited {(Holding Company) and shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company

Dima Limited (Holding.company w.e.f. 4th October 2016) (also Refer pote 51)
Na of Shares
Shareholding %

No of Shares
Sharcholding %

No of Shares
Sharcholding %

old erind
No of Sharvs
Sharcholding %

€) Shares held by hile ultimate holding
Sucicte Binancicre Imaobilicre ot Mobilicre SAS
Lafarge SA

LafargeHokim Energy Solutions

CBA Holding

Lafarge Industrial Ecology Inlermational

bsidiary of the

e £ the C

149,999,994

100.00%

0.00%

0.00%

after distributionof all p

0.00%

392,262,997
45.97%

0.00%

L9776
HOM%

-

0.00%

392,363,001
85.97%

649,776
4ms

-

As per records of Lhe company, including its regisier of sharcholder/members and other declarations stveived from sharehalder regarding beneficial interest the above sharcholding

vepresents both bepal and benefivial ownership of shares.

d} Aggregale number of equity shares [ssued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immedistely

preceding the reporting date;

Equity shares issued pursuant Lo merger scheme (Refer nole 513 (No. of shares)

150,060,000




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All amounts are jn INR crores, unless othencise stated)

Agat As at As at
Particul;
i F1 March 2007 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Nature and purpose of reserve
A - Capital Reserve
Capital reserve is used Lo record excess of net assets laken over pursuant (o amalgamation.

B - Debenture Redemption Reserve

In accordane with Companies Act, 2013 and rules Lhere under, pursuant Lo issue of non convertibl entures, the Company has created Del Red ion Reserve of Rs. 183

crore being the propedionate amount for the elapsed period with reference Lo Lotal period of such debenture. During FYZﬂ15-'l6, the Company had created Debenture Redemption
Reserve of Rs, 25,32 crore and transferred back Rs. $7.50 crore to retained camings on the redemption of entire erstwhile issued debentures,

C= Cash flow hedge reserve

The company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk asseciated with its highly probable forevast purchase, For hedging loreign currency risk, the
company uses foreign currency furward contracts which are designated as cash flow hedges. To the extent these hedge are effective; the change in fair value of hedging instrument is
recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amount recognised in Lhe cash fllow hedging reserve is reclssified te profit or loss when hedged item alfects profit or loss,

D - Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to revord the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is ulilized in socordance with the provisions of the A,

18. Borrowings

i) Secured borrowings

a. Terma Loan {Refer Note "a® below}

Indian rupee loan from banks - 150.00 300.00

b. Non convertible debentures (Refer Nole *b* below)

B.66% Secured listed non © ible d H ble al par on 14.09.2021 (8000 nos.) 77402 - -

£57% Secured listed non convertible debenture redecmable ot par on 14.09.2020 (8000 nos.) 77990 - -

B47% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2019 (12,500 nos.} 1.2Z7.80 - -

837% Secured Listed non © ble deb d ble at par on 14.09.2018 (11,500 nes.) 113804 - -

1i) Unsecured bormwings

Inter corporate deposit from halding company (Refer Note =d* below) nm - -

2% Unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into equity shares (Refer Note "c® below) $7.39 - -
4,298.46 150.00 300.00

Note :

o. The Term loan was secured by a first pari passu chatgte on all movable and immovable propertivs al the Integrated Cement Unit localed at Village-Bhawaliya, Tehasil- Nimbahera,
District-Chittorgarh, Rajastlan-3t2620, India, uind Gement Blending Unit at Village-Chidiya, Tehst-Charkht Dadrd, District-Bhiwanl, Haryana, India, both present and future, but
excluding stocks of raw materials, somi-finished goods amd finished goods, consumable stores & spares, book debls, outstamding monies and reveivable from time Lo time secured in
favour of working capital facilities. The rate of interest applicable Lo Lhis lerm loan is Bank's Base Rale plus 50 basis point. The rate of interest was in the range of 9.80% 10 10.50%. No
tera loant is sulstanding as on 3st March, 2017 and above charge has been satisfied.

b. The Company has issucd Non convertible debwmures (NCD) of Rs. 4000.00 vrores which are secured by first rankmgmlusnw.' charge in I'avonr ofthe dch-nl.ure rustee over all
rights, litle, interest and bonefit of the Company in respect of and over the fixed assets including plant and machinery, esquif land, i prop invesl and
intellectual propettios.

€. Untisted, unsecured compulsory convertible debenlures carry interest (accruing quarterly) at the rate of 2% on Lhe oulstanding amount. Each compulsory convertible deb
(CCD) are vonvertible at par and as such, 1 CCD of INR 1,00,000/ - will be converied inlo 10,000 equity share of INR 10 cach. Refer summary of significant accounting policies for
cxplanation on presentation of liability and equity component of CCD's

d. The Inter corporate depuosit of Rs, 300.00 crores is long term {n nature and carries interest rate of 8%

Repayment Schedule of Borrowings
Not Jater than one year - 150,00 150.00
Later than ane year and not Later than lwo yeors 1,150.00 15¢.00 150.00
Later than two years and not leler than five years 285000 - 130.00

19. Cther non-current financial liabilities

Liability for empleyve relaled expenses. 073 7.66 7H
Other linbilities 00 0.01 0.56
Totl 0.76 T67 8.50
20. Provisions {(non-current)

Pruvision for death bemedit {Refer note 39) KE) an .60
Provision [or sile resloration (Refer note 52) 2181 » 6.66
Provision for contractor's charges (Refer note 52) N 17.28 1846

Total [T ITEY 28.72
1, Deferred tax liabilities {net)

A] Deferred tax lability {Refer note 33) 1,635.12 SET.0 527,97
- Depreciation amd amortisativn 60149 T 327,39
- Deferred Lax liability un business combination (Refer nole 51) 1,033.63 -

+ Others 058

B] Deferred tax asset (Refer note 38} 410.74 460.57 486.86
- Disallowance under section 43B of the kncome Tax Act 5759 519 376
- Pravisivn far doubiful debls and advances 2420 nx» 19.13
- Unabsurbed dopreciation a3 23102 anane
- Others 10.05 10.87 18.85
+ MAT credil entitlement 195.55 141.53 47.93

Total 1,224.38 126.89 41.11




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as *Lafarge India Limited*)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017

(All amounts are it INR crores, unless othertoise slated)

As at Asat As at

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
22, Borrowings
Current maturitivs of long-term borrowings 15.92 152.50 506.96

15.92 152.50 506.96
23. Trade payables
Trade payables 7369 619.80 580.98
Due Lo micro and small enterprises [Refer note 49) 530 629 737
Total 739.99 626.09 588.35
24. Other current financial liabilities
Creditors for capital expenditure 30.66 3197 6193
Securily depasits from dealers, transporters and others 6886 36831 356.05
Derivative liabililies 0.08 0.69 joiva |
Total 3960 40147 424.69
25. Provisions (current)
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 39} - 190 -
Provision for leave benefits 1289 17.16 1341
Provision for death benefil (Refer nole 39) \ 041 [ 1] 0.24
Provision for wealth Lax - - 006
Provision for imfirect taxes/litigations (Refer note 52) 193.05 17792 127.28
Provision {ur dealer's discounts (Refer note 52) &1.80 47,60 3519
Provision for conlractor's charges {Refer note 52) 1.90 1.64 0.46
Provision - Qthers 345 363 372
Total 21650 250.15 20036
26, Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 69.56 M7 46.33
Liability for employee related expenses LM 50.24 4339
Liability towards Jdiscount to dealers 11518 B9 103.69
Othots (including statulery durs, provision for expenses) B3,23 75,71 .08
Tetal Hun 245.66 26849




Nuveoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Notes to financiat statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

(All aamonestts are tr INR crores, wnless othertoise stted)

Farticulars 2016-17 2015-16

27. Revenue from operations

Sale of products {including excise duty)

Finished goods G855 4T TR
Traded goods .3 1818

Other operating revenue
Rentals under own your wagon scheme 017 015
Recoveries of shortages & damaged cement 1.62 003
Industrial prometional assistance - fiscal incentive (Refer note below) 86.15 644
Provigion/ liabilities no longer required, written back 270 31.24
Scrap sales 551 5.10
Total revenue from operations 5,832.46 5,958.16

Dretail of products sold

Finished goods sold
Cement 4,580.02 463697
Readymix Congcrete E 1,064.73 1071.20
Aggregates 9.7 3014
Fly Ash Bricks 729 652
Chinker 33.64 21.69
5,69547 5,767.02
Traded goods so0id
Aggregates 15.07 1267
Readymix Cancrete B 196
Others 1.26 3.55
16.33 18,18
Note;
The Company has recognized as other operating Industrial P al Assistance (IPA) of Rs.54.94 Crores (Previous Year Rs.55.90 Crores) related

to Mejia Cement Plant, from the Government of West Bengal urder the West Bengal Incentive Scheme 2004. Similarly, IPA of Rs.31.21 Crores (Previous
Year Rs.30.54 Crores) has been recognised related to Chittorgath Cement Plant, from the Government of Rajasthan under the Rajasthan [nvestment
Prometion Scheme 2010.

28, Other income

Gain on sale of current investments (net) .19 13.02
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 2R 1.22
Interest income on bank deposits 310 15.60
Interest income on others 415 356
Net gain on disposal of property plant and equipment . 028
Other non-operating income 5.61 541
Total other income 29.27 9.0

29, Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year 69.23 6089
Add: Purchases 1,084.27 1.119.76
1,153.50 1,180.65
Less; Inventory at the end of the year {41.51) {69.23)
111199 111142

Details of material consumed

Cement 260.25 25631
Aggregales (including royalty paid on extraction) 165.18 177.24
Limestone {including royaity paid on extraction) 116.95 1nt 9%
Fly ash 105.63 104.46
Gypsum 93.79 104.10
Slag 13940 12117
Sand 12901 13100
Admixture wo 3603
Others 7477 £9.15

Total 1,111.9% 1,111.42




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(AN amorls are in INR crores, tnless obherise staled)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Details of inventory as at end of the year
Cement 4.63 510
Limestone 295 1145
Aggregates 78 337
Fly ash 075 118
Cypsum 17.94 826
Slag 3z 529
Sand 232 277
Admixture s 453
Boulder 081 208
Others 240 520
41.51 §9.23
30. Purchase of stock in trade
Aggregates 1279 732
Onhers. 1.2 239
14.01 0.1
31. Changes in inveniories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 5046 7047
Work-in-progress 12888 13646
179.34 20693
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 7047 35.52
Work-in-progress 13646 12042
20693 17594
Changes in inventories of finished goods 2001 (14.95)
Changes in in ies of work-i 7.58 {16.04)
ges prog 5y (S
Dretails of inveniory
Finished goods
Cement 44.86 £5.34
Aggregates 544 5.05
Others 0.16 0.08
50.46 7047
Work-in-progress
Clirker 12113 12999
Others 7.75 6.47
123.58 136.46
Tatal 175.34 206.93
32. Employee benefits expense
Salanes and wages 250.32 26217
Contribution to provident fund and gther retirement benefits 2284 21.83
Staff welfare expenses (LR 16.10
.47 300,10




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(AN amounts are in INR crores, nnless otlieriise siafed)

Particulars 201617 2015-16
33. Other expenses
Consumption of stores & spares {including write offs) 121.29 140.00
G ption of packing ial 15494 15174
Computer hard rent / mail e 8.58 9.55
Lease rent {Refer nole 41) 43.56 40.63
Rates & laxes 48.22 83.60
Insurance 8.7 946
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 44,00 46.90
Buildings and roads 5.16 8.87
Others 2901 26.51
CSR expenditure (Refer note 55) 5.82 488
Adverti and sales p 41.50 386
Travelling and conveyance expenses 2609 2586
Legel and professional charges 2019 1819
Payment to auditors (Refer note below) 0.61 1.3
Bad debts written off 0.00 001
Donations 012 0.54
Provision for bad/ doubtful debts and advances 5.50 78
Property, plant & equipment/CWIP written off 7.7 .88
Royalty and Managerial & Technical Service charges - 7334
Net los$ on foreign currency transaction and translation 033 5.81
Equipment hire, labour and subcontract charges 157.97 15511
Security service charges 10.68 92
Miscellaneous expenses 379 49.70
T76.45 91257
Payment to auditor (including sesvice tax)
Audit fee 046 0.73
Tax audit fee .05 011
Orher Services 0.05 043
Reimbursement of expenses 0.05 0.09
Total 0.61 1.36
34, Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on tangible assets 273.96 24254
Amortization of intangible assets 38.48 784
Depreciation on investment property 0.08 0.08
252 25046
35. Finance costs
Tntereston :
Non convertible debentures. 178.54 2899
Term loans 1257 35.65
Inter corporate deposits nee -
Compulsory convertible det 257 -
Security deposits from dealers, transporters and others 289 2626
Cash credit accounts . 0.0
Others 233 0.59
Olher finance costs
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 0.20 -
Amortization of ancillary borrowing costs 038 112
a7 9302
Borrowing cost capitalised - (5.12)
2317 §7.90
36. Earnings per equity share
Profit attributable to equity shacehold, 165.67 230.85
Weighted average number of equity shares EPS (Nos.) 306,984,081 456,412,778
Unlisted, unsecured det compulsorily ¢ ible into equity shares (Nos) * 490,410,959
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic & dilutive EPS (Nos.) 797,395,040 456,412,778
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 208 506
Dilutive earning per share {in Rs.) 208 506
Face value per Equity Share (in Rs.) 10,00 10.00

* The unlisied, unsecured debentures compulsonly convertible inle equity shares are to be converted mandatorily; there is no cash settlement aption either

with the Company or with the holder.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All amounts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

37. Tax expense
(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss
2016-17 2015-16
Current income tax 57.01 53.60
Tax expense relating to earlier years (93.28) {0.16)
(36.27) 53.44
Deferred tax liability (net)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 123.75 140.81
Minimum Alternate Tax credit (57.01) (53.60)
Defetred tax expense 66.74 87.n
Tax expense for the year 30.47 140.65
(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2016-17 2015-16
Tax Rate 34.608% 34.608%
Profit before tax 196.14 371.50
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (34.61%) 67.88 128.57
Tax effect of:
Expenses inadmissible under Income Tax Act, 1961 0.07 1.88
Divestment expenses 6.16 10.98
Loss of amalgamating company disallowed 60.05
Adjustment related to earlier years* {93.28) -
Increase in business loss carried forward (24.38) -
Others 13.97 (0.78)
3047 140.65
Effective tax rate 15.53% 37.86%

* The Company in its Income tax returns has claimed the Industrial Promotion Assistance (IPA) received during the period FY 2009-10 to 2014-15
as capital receipt. However, the Company has created provision for Income Tax in its books of accounts considering IPA as revenue receipt.

During the current year, based on ruling of the appeilate autharities on appeals of the Company and judicial rulings of the appellate authorities
for other taxpayers, the Company has decided to reverse tax provision of Rs.93.28 crores created in earlier years on IPA in its books of accounts.
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All amounts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

41. Operating leases

Lease payments

(a) The Company has taken various residential and commercial premises under operating leases. Further, cettain arrangements
entered by Company meet criteria specified in Appendix C of Ind AS 17 and are classified as embedded operating leases. The lease

payments recognised in the statement of profit and loss is Rs.43.56 Crore. (Previous year Rs. 40.63 Crore.)

(b) Future commitments of lease rentals on account of assets taken on non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

2016-17 2015-16
Less than one year 8.09 6.86
Between one and five years 8.25 ' 8.05

16.34 14.91




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited”)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017

(Al nmonts are mi INR crores, nuless otheriise stated)

42, Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information

for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is 4 reasonable approximation of fair value.

Cartying amount Fair value
March 31, 2017
INR FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Cast Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financjal assets
Current investments 41219 - - 41219 41219 - 41219
Trade receivables - - 444.22 444,22 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - n7ss N - - -
Cther bank balances - - 5.18 5.18 - E .
Loans 1.59 159 - - .
Others - - 229.12 2912 - - -
Derivative asset 0.00 - - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00
41219 - 75226 1,164.45 41219 0.00 412.19
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4,314.38 431438 - 4,31438 4,314.38
Trade payables - - 739.99 73999 - - -
Others - - 400.28 40028 - - -
Derivative liability 0.03 - - 0.08 - 0.08 0.08
0.08 - 5,454.63 5,434.73 - 4,314.46 4,314.46
Carrying amount Fair value
March 31, 2016
INR EVTPL FVTOLI Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Trade raceivables - - 523.37 52337 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 171.39 17139
Losns - - 348 3.48 - -
Others - - 165.82 165.82 - - -
Derivative asset 0.02 - - 0.02 - 0.02 0z
0.02 - 864.06 864,08 . 0.02 ooz
Financial liabilities
Borrowings. - - 302.50 30250 250 50
Trade payables - & 626.09 626.09 . -
Others - - 408.44 408.44 . - -
Derivative Liability 0.69 - - 0.69 068 0.69
0.69 - 1,337.03 1,337.72 - 303.19 303.19
Carrying amount Fair value
April 1, 2015
INR FVTPL FYTOCI  Awmortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Enamiil assels
Trade receivables - - 458,12 458.19 B
Cash and cash equivalents - - 294.40 29440 - -
Other bank balances - - 396 39% - - .
Loans - - 378 378 - = -
Others - - 198.27 198.27 - - -
- - 958.60 958.60 - 2 -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 806.96 806.96 - 805.96 805.96
Trade and other payables - - 588.35 588.35 - - -
Other - - 429.48 42943 - - -
Derivative Liability 371 - . 3an - N 37
n - 1,82479 1,828,530 - BIS7 810.67




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited {(formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All amounts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

42, Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

B, Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk ;
* Liquidity risk ; and
« Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s
primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s risk
management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with same. Risk assessment and management policies
and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors and
the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company's risk assessment and management policies and processes.

ii. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in
the normal course of business.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is determined by the individual characteristics and specifications of each customer, The profile
of the customer, including the market risk of the industry has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company
grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015

Neither past due nor impaired 198.99 29147 279.74

Past due but not impaired

Past due 1-180 days 154.52 156.48 108.22

Past due 181-365 days 20.51 21.56 1251

Past due 1 to 2 years 24.34 11.84 27.01

More than 2 years 45.86 : 42,02 30.71
44.22 523.37 458.19

Expected credit loss assessment for customers as at 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017

Exposutes to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine credit losse
Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macro economi
indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergone any substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of
minimal credit losses to continue. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due are still collectible in
full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The allowance at 31 March, 2016 and 31
March, 2017 related to several customers that may default on their payments to the Company and may not pay their outstanding
balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follow :

2016-17 2015-16
Balance as at beginning of the year 5537 50.27
Impairment loss recognised/ (reversed) 0.88 5.10
Balance at the end of the year 56.25
——=—= — ==

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions. The credit worth;
and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Maxch, 2017
(All amounts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

42, Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

ifi. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its
liquidity risk by ensuring, that it always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.

The Company has obtained both fund based and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The Company also constantly
monitors, as and when required, funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintain financial liquidity. The
company also enjoys Al+ ratings from CRISIL on short term facilities from banks indicating very strong degree of safety regarding timely
payment of financial obligations and caries lowest credit risk.

Exposure to liguidity risk
The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into televant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

* all non derivative financial liabilities
* Derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturites are essential for understanding the timing of the cash flows.

As at 31 March 2017 Total lyearorless 1-2years 2-5years Mso ;;l::n
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 4,962.28 - 1,782.29 3,179.99 -
Other non-current financial liabilities 0.76 0.76
Trade payables 739.99 739.99 - - -
Other financial current liabilities 399.52 399.52
Derivative financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 0.08 0.08
Contractual cash flows
As at 31 March 2016 Total lyearorless 1-2years 2-5years Mso ;::_‘:n
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 302.50 152,50 150.00 - B
Other non-current financial liabilities 7.67 7.67 - -
Trade payables 626.09 626.09
Other financial current liabilities 400.78 400.78 -
Derivative financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 0.6 0.69
Contractual cash flows
As at1 April 2015 Total Lyearorless 12years 25years orihan
5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 806.96 500.00 306.96 -
Cther non-current financial liabilities 8.50 8.50 - - .
Trade payables 588.35 588.35 - - -
Cther financial current liabilities 420,98 420.98 -
Derivative financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging a7 in

Contractual cash flows




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
{All anrounts are in INR crores, unless otherise stated)

42, Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates) ¢
price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency rece
and payables and all short term and long-lerm debt, The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk.

a. Currency risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the profit and loss account and equity, where any transaction References more than one currency or where assets/liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity.

Considering economic environment in which the Company operates, its operations are subject to risks arising from fluctuation in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate to fluctuations
foreign exchange rates of USD & EURD, on account of payables to foreign suppliers, for import of petcoke, gypsum and spares.

The Company, as per it risk management pelicy, uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or s¢
purpoesas.

Expusure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk as reported Lo the management of the Company is as follows:

Amounts in [NR (Crores) 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 01 April 201
EUR uspD EUR usb EUR L

Accounts Receivable - . - 1.85 0.05

Accounts Payable 136 5,72 27.98 22.56 53,26

Net balance sheet exposure 1.36 5.72 27.98 20.71 53.21

Forward exchange contracts - - 11,17 16.86 2422

Net exposure 1.36 6.72 16.81 3.85 2899

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening / weakening of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of Company would vesult in increase or decrease in profit or [oss and equity as shown in table belc
analysis assumes that all other variables, in pacticular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. The following analysis has been worked out based on the expos
the date of statements of financial position.

Profit or loss

Effect in INR Crore Strengthening ~ Weakening
31 March 2017

EUR 0.14) 014
ust 0.67) 0.67

Profit or loss

Effect in INR Crore Strengthening ~ Weakening
31 March 2016

EUR (1.07) 1.07
use {0.31) 0.31

b. [nterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market inlerest rates, The Company’s exposure to market
risk for changes in interest rates relates to fixed deposits and borrowings from financial institutions.

For details of the Company’s short-term and [ong term loans and borrowings, including interest rate profiles, Refer to Note 18 and 22 of these financial statements.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al amounts are in INR, crores, unless otierivise stated)

43. Hedge accounting

The Company perfarms hedging on its forecasted/firm foreign currency exposure in respect of import of goods and services from time to time on a 12 months rolling basis. The
Company uses forward #xchange contracts to hedge its currency risk arising frem such imports. Hedging instruments are denominated in the same currency in which the
imports are made. Maturity of hedging instruments are less than 12 months.

The foreign exchange forward contract balances vary with the level of expected foreign currency transactions and changes in foreign exchange forward rates.

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Assets Liabilities Assels Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Fair value of foreign currency forward contracts

designated as hedging instruments 0.00 0.08 0.02 0.69 - 3.71

The cash flow hedges of the firm commitments during the year ended 31 March 2017 were assessed to be highly effective, and as at 31 March 2017, a net uarealised loss of INR
0.06 crore (31 March 2016 - INR 012 crores and was included in other equity in respect of these ¢ontracts. The effective portion of INR 0.02 crore {31 March 2016 - INR 0.06
crore} is charged to profit and loss.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All amounts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

44, Netting off disclosure

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements and other similar agreements but not offset, as at March 31, 2016 and 1 April 2015.

Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
Gross Gross amount net off |presented in financial
Particulars Amounts in balance sheet statements
31 March 2017
Financial assets
Trade receivables 444.47 {0.25) 444.22
Derivative asset 0.00 - 0.00
Total 44147 (0.25) 444.22
Financial liabilities .
Derivative Liabilities 0.08 - 0.08
Total 0.08 - 0.08
Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
Gross Gross amount net off |presented in financial
Particulars Amounts in balance shest statements
31 March 2016
Financial assets
Trade receivables 528.06 4.69) 523,37
Derivative asset 0.02 - (.02
Total 528.08 (4.69) 523,39
Financial liabilities
Derivative Liabilities 0.69 - 0.69
Total 0.69 - 0.69
Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
Gross Gross amount net off | presented in financial
Particulars Amounts in balance sheet statements
1 April 2015
Financial assets
Trade receivables 460.56 (2.37) 458.19
Total 460.56 {2.37) 458.19
Financial liabilities
Derivative Liabilities 3.71 - 3.71
Total 37 - an

(a) Offsetting arrangements
(i) CFA agents
The Company engages the services of CFA agents for selling the cement. As per the terms of the agreement, Company has a

right to offset balances with CFA against debtors balances if debtor has not paid for a period of 90 days. Hence such amounts
have been offset in the balance sheet.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All amounts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

45. Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base 5o as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future

development of the business. The Company carefuly moniters cash and bank balances, deployment of surplus funds and regularly asseses any

debt requirements.

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.

Total borrowings along with accrued interest

Less : Cash and bank balances & Current Investments
Adjusted net debt

Equity

Other Equity

Total Equity

Adjusted net debt to equity ratic

As at 31 March As at 31 March 2016  As at 1 April 2015

2017
431438 302.50 806.96
(489.12) (171.39) {298.36)
3,825.26 13111 508.60

150.00 456.41 456.41
3,798.95 3,748.38 3,518.41
3,948.95 4,204.79 3,974.82

097 0.03 013
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
{All amonis are in INR crores, intess othermise siafed)

47. Contingent Liabilities

. N . As at 31 March  Asat 1 Aprif

Contingent Liabillities wot provided for in respect of: A5 at 31 March 2017 fui phetis
i, Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debs: -

4. Disputed demands in respect of Sales Tax by various sales tax authorities 2741 17.28 5291
b. Disputed demand in respect of Royalty on Limestone by the State of Chihattisgarh 166.02 143.50 125.21
<. Disputed demand in respect of Entry Tax by various tax authorities 36.98 2019 19.18
d. Disputed demand in respect of Water cess by the State of Chhattisgarh 0.13 013 013
e Disputed demand in respect af Excise Duty 167.46 160.91 146,32
f. Disputed demand in respect of Service Tax 251 1.48 092
g- Disputed demand in respect of VAT 1145 12.3¢ 833
h. Stamp Duty paid under protest for change of name from GKW to LRCL, 1.80 i.80 1.80
i. Disputed demands in respect of Custom duties 1444 14.44 14.44
|- I respect of Income Tax 234.47 11492 3248
k. Cther claims 2044 18.49 284
Against these, payments under protest/ adjusiments made by the Company 96.35 54.93 48.64

ii. Guaranlees given by the Company on behalf of its Joint venture Company - - 5.51

iii. The State of Chhattisgarh has filed a Revision Application challenging the adjudication order of the
District Registrar and Collector of Stamps; Janjgir <Champa for alleged under-valuation of the
properties, which the Company acquired from Raymond Lid. Against this, Raymond Ltd. has filed a
Special Leave Petition before the Honorable Supreme Court, which has stayed the proceedings before

the Board of Revenue,
The Collecter of Stamps, Raipur has commenced enquiry proceedings under Section 47 {(A)(3) of the Amount not Amount not
Indian Stamp Act, 1899 questioning the amount of stamp duty paid by The Tata Iron and Steel determinable determinable

Company Limited (TISCC) on transfer of the immovable properties at Sonadih fram TISCQ te the
Company, The Company has filed a Writ Petition in the Honorable High Court of Bilaspur,
Chhattisgarh challenging the enquiry commenced by the Collector of Stamps. The matter is pending
before the High Court.

The Company’s liability, if at all arises, in both the above cases, is restricted to 50% by virtue of
business transfer agreement between Lafarge and Raymond Ltd/ TISCO.

=z

iv. [n June 2012, the Competition Commission of tndia (CCI) passed an Order levying a penalty of Rs. 490 crore on the Company in connection with a complaint filed
by the Builders Association of India against leading cemwent companies (including Lafarge) for alleged viclation of certain provisions of the Competition Act, 2002
The Company filed an appeal before the COMPAT for setting aside the said Order of CCl. The COMPAT granted stay on levying the penalty imposed on the
Company by CCI against deposit of 10% of the penalty amount. In December 2015, the COMPAT finally set aside the said Qrder of CCl and remanded back ko CCI
for fresh adjudication of the issues and passing of fresh Order. It also allowed the Company to withdraw the amount of 10% deposit kept with the CCl, However, in
August 2016 the case was reheard by CCl and it passed an Order levyinga penalty of Rs. 490 crore on the Company. The Company had filed an appeal against the
Order before the Competition A ppellate Tribunal ({COMPAT). The COMPAT has granted a stay on the CCl Order against a deposit of 10% of the penalty amount,
which has been deposited since. Based on advice of external legal counsel and the rights available wilh the Company, no provision is considered necessary

48. Capital and other Commitment

Asat 31 March  Asat1 April

As at 31 March 2017 2016 2015

Esti | ining t K i t ided for (net off
adsi‘:;r’l‘acl:s;moumofcontrac s remaining to be execuled on capital account and not provi r(net o 1507 2045 7424

Others 386 6.62 059




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(ATl ammoierts nre 1 INR crores, rinless othertoise stated)

49, Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Asat31l March  AsatlApnl

As at 31 March 2017 2016 2015
i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 530 629 7.37
Interest due on above - = -
if) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year
Principal 0.07 04 023
Interest 0.00
i)} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which been 0.07 007 027
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act, 2006.
iv} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 0.25 0.51 044
v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 3 - 2

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid {0 the small enlerprise fot the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Emerprise
Development Act, 2006.

S0. Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)
Amount in INR

Lo other
Particulars SBN ( specified denomination Total
bank notes )

notes
Cloging cash in hand as on 08/11/2016 412,000 210,006 622,006
(+) permitted receipts* 26,500 2,016,766 2,043,266
() permitted pay ments - 1,085,287 1,085,287
{-) amt, deposiled in banks 438,500 318,450 756,950
Closing cash in hand as on 34122016 - 823,035 823,055

* Permitted receipts represents the advance amount returned by company's employees.




Nuvoso Vistas Corporallon Limited (formacly known as "Lefarge India Limbted?]
Hotas 16 fluanclal statcments for the yoar ended 3 March, 2017
“t in INR croren, wrless cih ']

51. Business comblastion

Hirchwrn Cemend Limited (Mirchem) was incorporated on 2nd Augusl 2016 as a wholly owned subsidlary of Niema Limited 10 engags in the cement business. Nimua intopded 0 sequire the ormienl and retaied
busiress of Lafarge Indis Limited {Lafarge) and due 4o various approvals and comunenchad Masons, § acyuired such business of Lafarge (ke *Acqulsition”) by way of acquiring 100% shares of Lafarge from Iis
shareholders. The arqubsition of Lafarge by Ninhem was accounted for in the cooselidatvd ((nanclal statements of Nirchem in accordance with [nd AS 103 Rusiness Combinations by applylg, the

meibod. The conaedldated fbnanclal slatements a3 at 4th Ouicber, 2016 prepared by napagersnt B ooonkance with Ind AS 110, have been adopted by the Boandt Gnder the acquisiion muthod. all dentiflable
ancls Inluding imtangibls, labllitirs and conlingent Ishilities of Lafarge were messumd and suounicd al the fair value oo of the scquisition date. Falr valucs Bate heon desemined by an indopeaden valued.
The eucess of the cost of 1he woquisition over the falr value of Lhe sequieed xascts, lubililics amd contivgent MabLdies b recognized as Coodwill.

Calcutution of Gaodial]
[Consideration Paid AX230
Nol Assets acquired 5.763.64
Goodwill —5
Erstwhile acquired Goodwill in books of Lafarge s

Iﬂil{unﬂl Goodwill recognised 19927

Subsequenlly, pursaant to the Scheme of Amalgamation under Scalons 230-232 and any other sppliable provisloms of the Companics Ak, 2012 read with Compenics (Comprombe, Atrangement and
A lon) Rutes, 2016, sanctioned by the Company low Iribunal of Muembe! branch aml filed with the Reghirar of Companica {ReC on 191 April, 2017, Nirchiom Coment |Limited has beon amsbgamated
wiih Nuvoco Vistas Cocporation Limiled (formerly known as "Lafarge India Lim#ed") woe L. th October 2016, the Appolnted Date.

By virtue of gulbunce provided in App C of Ind AS 103, the above amalgamalion s a ‘tommon wontrol business combination’ glven the combining cntiies {Nirchem and Lafargy) sre both wliimately controbied
by the vame uttimale parest (Mirsu Limited) before and afier the amalgamation.  Accordingly, the business combleaition hes hern acevminted §or uning the pooling of Interesl method wherein the arets snd
ILbilltles of Lthe combizzing, csities ar: rellected of theie carying amoupls a3 spesilied in the schemsa ke, values o desermined umdor IND AS 102 Business Combinations, which In wm have bova peoled from the
Conselidaled Financisl Statements of Mivcheon aa al 4th Ociober. 2006,

Amount Note
18,207.50)
Equily share capital of Ninchem vancellel 300000
Issue of new eyuily shures of Nuvove as per merger scheme {150.00H
tNuvovo ofd share capital reversed 43641

151019 [Refer Note 2
137651 |Refer Note 4
15927 | Refer Note 4
Deferred tax liability (100063} | Refier Note 38
|Capital reserve on Menger (L0807
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Noles to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All amounts are tn INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

56. Transition to Ind AS

For the purpoeses of reporting as set out in Note 1, the Company has transitioned basis of accounting from Indian generally accepted accounting principles
("IGAAP") to Ind AS. The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and in
the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2015 (the “transition date”).

In preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet, Company has adjusted amounts reported in financial statements prepared in accordance with IGAAP, An explanation
of how the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has affected the company’s financial performance, cash flows and financial position is set out in the following tables
and the notes that accompany the tables. On transition, we did not revise estimates previously made under IGAAP except where required by Ind AS.

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS:

Ind AS optional exemptions

1} Inv tin Joint Ventures and subsidiaries

Ind AS 101 allows a first time adopter to record the carrying value of investment in joint venture as per IGAAP or fair value of investment in joint venture at
transition date as deemed cost under Ind AS,

Accordingly, the Company has elected to carry its investment in joint venture at IGAAP carrying value on transition date.

2) Deemed Cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the I[GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary
adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities, This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment
property covered by Ind AS 40 [nvestment Properties.

Accordingly, the company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property at their IGAAP carrying
value.

3) Decommissioning labilities

Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 16 prospectively from the transition date. This provides relief from changes in a decommissioning, restoration to
be added or deducted from the cost of asset to which it relates (including mining rights) ; the adjusted depreciable amount of the asset Is then depreciated
prospectively over remaining useful life.

Accordingly, lhe company has elected Lo avail this exemption, it has

a. measured the liability as at the date of transition;

b, estimated the initial liability by discounting liability measured at histerical risk adjusted discount rate

¢ calculated the accumulated depreciation on that amount, as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

4) Business Combination

Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date. This provides relief
from full retrospective application that would require rest: nt of all busi. combinations prior to the transition date.

The Company elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. Business combinations occurring priot to the
transition date have not been restated.

5) Arrangement contalning a lease

IND AS 101 provides the option to determine whether an arrangement existing at date of transition is, or contains, a lease based on the facts and circumstances at
that date and not at lease start date.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to determine arrangement existing at the date of transition and not at lease start date.

Ind mandal % ioh
1) Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to [nd AS shail be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with
IGAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error,

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with IGAAP, except the following items where
application of IGAAP did not require estimation.

i) FVTOCI - Unquoted equity shares
i) FVTPL - Debt securities
iii) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit toss model
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B. Reconciliations between IGAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity and total comprehensive income for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from IGAAP
to Ind AS.

Reconciliation of equity as at transition date {1 April 2015)

Notes IGAAP* Adjustmentsy/Reclass Ind AS
ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 3,591.34 (8.02) 3,583.82
(b) Capital work in progress 246.77 - 246.77
{c) Investment property 3 1.59 159
(d) Goodwill 549.5¢ - 549,59
{e) Otherintangible assets 2(b) 1715 2.50 19.65
(f) Intangible assets under development - - -
(g) Financial assets
(i) [Investments - -
{il) Loans 0.12 - 0.12
(i) Other 127.69 - 127.69
(k) Other non current assets 8 386.10 (87.93) 29817
4,919.26 {91.86) 4,827.40

2. CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Inventories 440.25 - 440.25

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Current Investments -

(ii) Trade receivables 458.19 - 458.19
(iiiy Cash and cash equivalents 294.40 - 294.40
(iv) Other bank balances 3.96 3.96
{v) Loans 3.66 - 3.66
(vi) Others 7058 - 70.58
(dy Othercurrent assets 3 242.29 1.27 243.56
1,513.33 1.27 1,514.60
TOTAL ASSETS 6,432,59 (90.59) 6,342.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(2} Equity share capital 45641 - 456.41
{b) Other Equity 2(b), 1,3, 4,6 3,52241 (4.00) 351841
3,978.62 {4.00) 3,974.82
LIABILITIES

1. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a} Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 300.00 - 300.00

(i) Other 8.50 - 8.50

{b) Provisions 2{(c) 2321 5.51 2872
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6,8 13115 (90.04) 41,11
462.36 (84.53) 378.33

2. CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 508.14 (1.18) 506.96

(i) Trade payables 588.35 - 588.35

(iii) Others 424,69 - 424.69

(b} Provisions 146.00 54.36 20036
{c) Othercurrent liabilities 32373 (55.24) 268,49
1,990.91 (2.06) 1,988.85

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 643259 (90.59) 6,342.00

* IGAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
—
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Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2016

Notes IGAAP* Adjustments/Reclass Ind AS
ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

{a) Property, plant and equipment 1 3,656.07 (941) 3,646.66
(b) Capital work in progress 111.65 - 111.65
(c} Investment property 3 - 1.51 1.51
{d) Goodwill 4 423.95 125.64 549.59
(e) Other intangible assets Hb) 27.56 {11.09) 16.47
{f) Intangible assets under development 12.58 - 12.58
(g) Financial assets

(i} Investments 0.05 - 0.05

(i} Loans - - -

{ili) Other 7784 - 77.84
(h} Other non current assets 8 420.64 (141.52) 27992

4,730.34 (34.87) 4,695.47

2. CURRENT ASSETS

{a) Inventories ' 488.19 . 458.19
(b) Financial assets
() Current Investments

(ii} Trade receivables 523.37 - 523.37
{iil) Cash and cash equivalents 171.39 - 171.39
(iv) Other bank balances - - -
{v) Loans 3.48 - 348
(vi) Others 88.00 - 88.00
{d) Other current assets 3 254.75 {1.60} 253.15
1,499,18 (1.60) 149758
TOTAL ASSETS 6,229.52 {36.47) 6,193.05
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 456.41 . 456.41
(b) Other Equity 2(b), 1,3,4,6 367127 FZAL 3,748.38
4,127.68 7711 4,204.79
LIABILITIES

1. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 150.00 - 150.00

(ii) Others 7.67 - 7.67

(b) Provisions 2{c) 39.68 {11.85) 27.83
(¢} Deferred tax liabilities {Net) 6.8 227.62 {100.73} 126.89
42497 (112.58) 312.39

2. CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 152.50 - 152.50

(i} Trade payables 626,09 - 626.09

(iii) Others 40147 - 401.47

(b) Provisions 203.50 46,65 250,15
) Other current liabilities 293.31 (47.65) 245.66
1,676.87 {1.00) 167587

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,229,52 36.47) 6,193.05

* IGAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS p ion recquir ts for the purpose of this note,
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(Al auronnts are 1 INR croves, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes IGAAP* Adjustments/Reclass Ind AS
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 9,10 5,303.86 654.30 5,958.16
Other income 39.09 - 39.09
TOTAL INCOME 5,342.95 654.30 5,997.25
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 1,117.11 (5.69) 1,111.42
Purchase of Traded Goods 12.00 (1.79 10.21
Power and fuel 889.03 - 889.03
Freight and forwarding charges 1,372.25 - 1,372.25
Changes i.n inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress (30.99) i} (30.99)
and stock-in-trade
Excise duty on sale of goods 9 . 679.63 679.63
Employee Benefits Expenses 5 304.22 {4.12) 300.10
Other Expenses 898.48 14.39 287
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1,2(b), 3, 4 375.10 (124.64) 250.46
Finance costs 2(b), 10 119.52 (31.62) 87.90
TOTAL EXPENSES 5,056.72 526.16 5,582.88
Profit before exceptional items and tax 286,23 128.14 414.37
Exceptional items 42.87 - 42.87
Profit before tax 243.36 128.14 371.50
Tax expense:
1. Current Tax 53.60 53.60
2. MAT credit utilised/ (entitlement) (53.60) - {53.60)
3. Deferred tax 96.47 44.34 140.81
4. Tax expense relating to earlier years (0.16) 3 {0.16)
Total tax expense 96.31 44,34 140.65
Profit/{Loss) for the period 147.05 83.80 230.85
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
| Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
1. Remeasurements gain/ (losses) of post-employment 5 - (4.12) (4.12)
benefit obligation
ii. Income tax related to above - 143 143
il Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss
i. Deferred gain/(losses) on cash flow hedge - 2.77 2.77
ii. Income tax related to above (0.96} (0.96)
Total comprehensive income for the year 147.05 82.92 229,97

* IGAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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Reconciliation of Equity as per IGAAP and as per Ind AS

Rs. In Crores

Previous year ended

As at 1 April,

Particulars Notes 21.03.2016 2015
Equity as per Previous Indian GAAP 4,127,68 3,978.82
Unwinding of Site restoration liability 2(b) 1.92 257
Depreciation on site restoration 2(b) (0.19) {0.66)
Depreciation of freehold land used for mining 1 (9.41) 8.02)
Depreciation on investment properties 3 (0.08)
Reversal of Goodwill amortisation F 125.64 .
Total impact 117.88 (6.11)
Tax effect of above adjustment 6 (40.77) 211
Equity as per Ind As 4,204,79 3,974.82

The reconciliation of net prefit or loss reported in accordance with Indian GAAP to total comprehensive income in accordance with Ind AS is given

below:

Particulars Notes Frev i‘.;):;;;;; : nded
Net Profit under previous Indian GAAP 147.05
Reclassification of net actuarial loss on defined obligation to other comprehensive income 5 412
Unwinding of Site restoration liability 2(b) (0.65)
Depreciation on site restoration Hb) 047
Depreciation of freehold land used for mining 1 (1.38)
Depreciation on investment properties 3 (0.08)
Reversal of Goodwill amuortisation 4 125.64
Total Impact 128.12
Tax effect of above adjustment 6 (44.32)
Net Profit for the period under Ind-AS 230.85
Other Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS (0.88)
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 229.97
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Notes to Lhe reconcliation

Membership No, 118247

Unader IGAAP, the land acquined for explorali d e ction of 1 i gnised in (rechold land and carried at cost, Such feechold land is not depreviated or
impaired. Under Ind AS, such frechold | tand used for mining, is depreciaied using unit of production method. Due 1o this, reehold land has devreased by Rs. 9.41 crare
as on 31st March, 16(1 April, 2015: Rs. 8.02 crone) and retained mminy has decreased by Rs. 6.15 crore (et of deferred Vix) as on 31 March 2016 (1 April, 2013: Rs. 5.25
crore (el of deferved 1ax)). Depreviation for the year endesd has boen increased by Ra. 1.38 crore for the year ended 3t March 2006 and total comprehensive income

decreased by Rs. 091 crore (Net of deferred tax),

Under IGAAP, Uhe Company has crealed provision for the mine restoration st undiscounted amount. Mining i [ | cut till 31 March 2015,
For year eaded 31 March 16, Company luuapllalu«.l mine restoration provision. Under Esd AS, the Company has n\ﬂgmmd ihe provision at the present value of

d cbligation. The unwinding &f provision for restoration obligalion has been sccountcd as finance cost and the sorresponding asel has been deproviated using
unil of production method m-fumpany has used optional exemplion under Ind AS 101 1o measure the proviskon on transilion dale.
Duc lo his:
a} Intangibhe assets has docreased by Rs. 11.0% crore (Nel of aniortisation) as on 335t March 16 (Increased by Rs. 250 crone {Net of amorlisalion) as at 1 April, 2015)
b} Retained carnings has incressod by Rs. 113 crore {net of deferred tax) as on 31 March 2016 {1 Apnil, 2015: Rs. 1.25 crore {net of deferred Lax)). Finance cost for the yoar
ended 31 March 2016 has been increased by Rs. 0.65 crore, amortisation has been decreased by Rs.047 crore for the year enled 31 March 2016 and lolal comprehensive
income decreased by Rs. 0,12 crore (Nel of deforeed Lax).
<) Provision for mining restoration decreased by Rs. 12.51 crore as on 31 March 2016 fincreased by Rs. 0.5% croce as on 1 April 2015}

Usder IGAAP, the Company classificd o residential flat owned by it as assets held for sabe and did not depreciate it and inctuded in olher current assels. Under Ind A5,
the said flat is classified 43 invesimenl properly sie the criterion for classifying as assets held for sale a3 per Ind AS arc ol met and the said flat is held lor future
undetormimed use.

Dur to this, I ly has i d by Rs. 1.31 crore (Net of amaorlisation) as on 3ts| March, 16 (1st April 2015: Rs. 1.59 crore). Retained camings has
decreased by Re. 005 crnrn {lm(nl deferred 1ax) 0% on 31 March 2016, Depreciation has been increased by Rs.0.08 crores for Ihe year ended 31 March 2016 and lota]
comprehensive income decroased by Rs, 0.05 crare (Nel of deferted tax).

Uniler IGAAP, the company has amurlised gondwill resulting from acquisitions over 10.35 yoars. Under Ind AS, gooulwill is not amortised but lesied for impaienient al
least annually,

Due 1o this, Goodwill has increased by Ry, 125,61 crore as on 31st March, 16. Retained eamnings has increased by Rs. 82.16 crare (et of deferred tax) as on 31 March 2016
Amortisalion has been decreased by Rs. 125.64 crores foe the year ended 31 March 2016 and Lotal comprefwnsive income incroased by Re. 82.16 crore (Net of duferred
tax),

Under v IGAAP, the actuarial gains amd losses were forming part of the profitor loss fos the year. Under Ind AS, renwasueements §.0, actuarial gains and losses are

gnised in olbwr comprehensive incoaw instead of profit or loss. Actuarisl loss of Rs. 4.12 ¢rore is reclassified from Employee Beoefits Exp to otbwy
prehensive inconw, [ting ion < in Employee Benefits Exp
Tln. e various Iransitional adjustments lead to temporary diff Delerred tax adj are ised im relation to thwse undedlying transaction either in relained
A separale comp of equity. The net impact of Ind AS adjustiment is deferred Lax Ii-hilulies of Rs. 40,77 croee as on 31 Maech 2016 (duferred tax assets of

Rs. 2.1.1 <rove as on 1 April 2015).

The transitiont from IGAAP 1o lind AS has no malerial impacl on the statement of cash flows,

Under IGAAF, MAT crodit entitlement is presonted under other non current asscts, However, under Ind AS, MAT credit entitlement is considered as deferred tax assels
s chassifiod accordingly.

Under IGAAP, sale of goods was presenied ws nel of excise duty. However, under Ind AS, sele of goods includes excise duly. Excise duty on sle of goods is suparataly
presented on the face of statenient of profit and loss. Due Io this, Ry Tronn Operations is i d by Rs. 679,63 crores with corsresponding increase in excise
expenses,

Under IGAAP, vash dliscount of Rs. 32.27 crores is disclosed under Fimance cost. Uider I AS, cash discount is nelted off fron revenue. Due to this, Revenue from
Operations is decreased by Rs, 3227 crores wilh corresponding devrease In finance cost.

As per our reparl of even date For amd on behalf of the Baard of Directors of Nuvoce Vistas Corporation Limiled
CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229
Fi istryi e
\ SuketiMareshbhai Shah
Dircctor

DAN: 07211283

Company Sedntary

Place = Mupibai Plave : Mumbai

Date: 22 May 2017 Dale: 22 bay 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”)

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of
Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiary
(the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), and joint venture
comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes fn Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind
AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group including its joint venture in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and of its joint
venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

The Ruby, Level 9, North West Wing,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (W),
Mumbai - 400028, INDIA

Tel: +91 22 3332 1600
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated {nd AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the consolidated financial position of the Group and its joint
venture as at 31 March, 2017, and its consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of one subsidiary (including the comparative
financial information for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the transition date opening balance
sheet as at 1 April, 2015), whose Ind AS financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 500,000 and
net assets of Rs. 477,050 as at 31 March 2017, total revenues of Rs. Nil and net cash
outflows/inflows amounting to Rs. Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The consotidated Ind AS financial statements also include
the Group’s share of net profit/loss of Rs. Nil for the year ended 31 March 2017, as considered in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in respect of one joint venture, whose Ind AS
financial statements (including the comparative financial information for the year ended 31 March
2016 and the transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 April, 2015), have not been audited by
us. These Ind AS financial statements have been audited by the other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and joint
venture, is based solely on the report of other auditors.

Qur opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the Ind AS financial statements
certified by the Management.
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b. The consolidated Indian GAAP financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March
2016, were audited by another auditor whose report dated 3 June 2016 expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements.

¢. The comparative financial information of the Holding Company for the year ended 31 March 2016
and the transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 included in these consolidated Ind
AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor
auditor whose reports for the year ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 dated 9 June 2015 and
3 June 2016 respectively expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements, as
adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to
the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the
subsidiary and joint venture, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph above, we report, to the
extent applicable that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements,

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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(d)

(e)

()

()

()

fi.

fii.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

in our opinion, there are no matters that may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Group.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company and joint venture, none of the
directors of the Group companies, and its joint venture is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from
being appointed as a director of that Company in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financiat reporting of the
Group, and its joint venture and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in ‘Annexure A’.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiary and joint venture, as noted in the ‘Other matters’ paragraph:

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group, and its joint venture - Refer Note 25 and
Note 47 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

The Group, and its joint venture did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 315t March, 2017.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary and joint venture during the
year ended 31%* March, 2017.
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iv.  The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the
Notification 5.0. 3407(E) dated November 8, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during the
period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016, Based on audit procedures and
relying on the management representation we report that the disclosures are in accordance
with books of account maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the
Management - Refer Note 50.

Vishal
Partner
Membership No. 118247

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 22, 2017
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NUVOCO VISTAS CORPORATION LIMITED (FORMERLY “LAFARGE INDIA
LIMITED”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2017, we have audited the internal financial contrals over financial reporting of
Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (“the Company”) (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”} and its subsidiary company and joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India,
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company, and joint venture,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl) (“the Guidance Note”). These responsibitities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internat financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financiat reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company,
and one joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For MZSK & Associates
artered Accountants

Partner
Membership No: 118247
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 22, 2017




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017
(Al anrotints are i INR crones, nndess ollierwise stated)

Corporation Limited

I Acrowntlants

istranon No IOSK/

K:"ishal Vilas Qjivadkar
arther

Membership No. 118247 Ajay Si
Company
Place : Mumbai Mlace : Mumbai

Date : 22 May 2017 Dhate : 22 May 2017

SK & Associales CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229

Suketu Nareshbhai Shah
Direcior
DIN: 07211283

Particulars Note No. Asal As al Asal
ol 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 3 April 2015
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(@) Property, plant and equipment 2 5,087.32 3,646.66 3,583.82
() Capilal work-in-progress 127.98 111.65 246.77
(€)  Investment property 3 1.43 1.51 159
) Goodwill 4 2443.86 549.59 549.59
(&) Onher intangible assels 4 1,383.38 16.47 19.65
() Imangible assets under development 15.16 1258 -
() Financial assets
(i} Investments 5 - - .
(ii) Loans 6 - - 012
{iii) Other non-current financial assets 7 12881 7784 127.69
th) Other non current assets 8 42387 2792 298.17
9,611.81 4,69542 4.827.40
CURRENT ASSETS
(@)  Inventories 2 361.04 458.19 440.25
(b} Financial assets
{i) Current investiments 10 412.19 - -
(i1} Trade receivables n 4d4.22 52337 458,19
(iii) Cash and cash equivalenis 12 7180 171,44 294.40
(iv) Other bank balances 13 518 - 3.96
(v} Loans 14 1.99 348 .66
(vi) Other current financial assets 15 100.31 88.00 70.58
€)  Other current assets 16 276.88 253.15% 243.56
1,673.61 1,497.63 1,514.60
TOTAL ASSETS 11,285.42 5,193.05 6,342,00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a}  Equity share capital 17 130.00 456,41 456.41
(b) Other equity 379895 3,748.38 351841
()  Non-controlling interest 57 - -
3,948.95 4,204.79 3974.82
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(4) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 4,298.46 150.00 000
(iiy Other non-current financial liabilites 19 0.76 7467 850
(b} Provisions (non-current) 20 48.65 27.83 872
()  Deferred 1ax liabilities (net) 21 1,224.38 126.89 4171
557225 N9 378.33
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 2 15.92 152.50 506.96
(i) Trade payables P 739.99 626.09 58235
(iif) Other current financial liabilities 24 399.60 401,47 424.69
() Provisions (current) 25 276.50 25015 200.36
()  Other current liabilities 26 322 245.66 268.49
1,764.22 1,675.87 1,988.85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITEES 11,28542 6,193.05 6,342.00
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
The accompanying noles are an inlegral part of these consolidaled financial statements
A3 per ous report of even da For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuvoco Vistas




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
(AlLaorinls are i INR crores, unlvss otherose stafed)

Tarticulars Nole No. 2016-17 2015-16
INCOME
Revenue from operations. 27 5,832.46 595316
Other income 28 29.27 39.09
Tolal Income 5.861.73 §,997.25
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 29 1,H1.99 111142
Purchase o stock in trade 30 14.09 10.21
Changes (n inventores of imshed goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade Ell 27.59 (30.99)
Power and (uel 847.17 889.03
Freight and forwarding charges 1,361.40 13725
Excise duty on sale of goods 67548 679.63
Employee benefits expense 32 28997 300.10
Dwpreciation and amortization expense 34 31252 25046
Finance cosls a5 2517 87.90
Chher expenses 33 77648 1287
Tolal expenses 5,647.78 5,582.88
Profit before share of profil/(loss) in joint venture, exceptional items and tax 21395 414.37
Share of profit/(toss) fram joint venture 57 - -
Exceptional itenns 4 17.81 42.87
Profit before fax 196.14 37150
Tax expense:
1. Current Tax (MAT) 7 57.01 53.60
2. MAT credit entitlement 37 {57.01} {53.601
3. Deferred tax (excluding MAT credit entitlement} kg 123.75 140.81
4. Tax expense relating to earlier years 7 (93.28)] 0.16}
Total tax expense 30.47 140.65
Profil after tax 165.67 230.85

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)
I ltems that wilk not be reclassilied to stalemeni of profit and loss

1, Remgasurements jzain/ {losses) of post-employment benefit obligation 0.19 (3.12)
v Income lax related to #hove {0.07), 143
0.12 {2.69)
11 ltems that will be reclassified 1o stateswent of profit and loss
1. Deferred gain  {losses) on cash flow hedge 0.09 277
it Income tax related 1o dbove (0.03) (0.96)
0.06 1.4
[Other comprehensive income for the year 0.18 ©.88)]
Tolal comprehensive income for the year 165.85 229.97

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 165.67 230.85
Nor-conlrolling interests . -

Tolal comprehensive income altributable 1o:

Equity holders of the parent 165.85 12997

Non-controlling interesis .
|Earnings per equily share 36

1. Basic {INR} 2.08 506

2. Diluted {ENR} 208 5.06
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behall of the Board of Directors of Nuvaco
Vistas Corporalion Limited
CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229
¥
Utiwaf SRN Shah
MD & C + CEC Director
\ DIN: 01737515 DIN: 07211283
fishal Yilas Divadkar
tner
Membership No. 118247
Ajay

Company tary

Place ; Mumbai Place: Mumbal
Date: 22 May 2017 Date : 22 May 2017




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2017
(AN anmnits are in INR crores, unless otherionse stated)

Partivulars 2016-17 2015-16
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before lax 196.14 371.50
Adjnstments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 312.52 250,46
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss (Net) (0.54) 141
Provision for bad/doubtful debits and advances 5.50 7.83
Bad debts 0.00 0.01
Provision for indirect taxes / legal cases 16.20 51.39
Provision/ liabilities no longer required, written back (27.21) {81.24)
Property, Plant & Equipment/CWIP written off 727 9.88
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment {net) . {0.28)
Gain on sale of current investments (14.19) {13.02)
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 2.22} (1.22)
Stores and spares written off - 10.54
Interest income on bank deposits (3.10} (15.60)
Interest income on others {4.15) (3.56)
Finance cosls 231.17 87.90
717.39 676.00
Operating profit before working capital adjustinents:
Adjustments for working capital :
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 97.15 (28.48)
{Increase); Decrease in trade and other receivables 73.64 (73.02)
(Increase) / Decrease in loans and advances and other non current assels 1140.18) 2334
Increase in trade / other pavables, provisions and other liability 2339 112.98
981.94 T10.82
Income Tax paid (Net) (59.72) {50.91)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 922,22 659.91
(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment (14137} (228.22)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assels 0.43
Purchase of current investments {(2,366.26) (2,414.50)
Proceeds from sale of current investinents 1.970.48 2,427.52
Loans given during the year 1.76 {0.6%9)
Interest received 6.44 20.40
NET CASH FLOWS USED [N INVESTING ACTIVITIES {528.95) {195.06)
(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repavment of borrowings (300.00} (500.00)
Inlerest paid {203.49) (91.77)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (503.49) (551.77)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) (110.22) (126.92)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 171.44 298,36
Additions through amalgamation 15.76 -
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the year {Refer note 12 and 13) * 76.98 171.44
fReconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance Sheel
Cash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet [Note 12 & 13]
Caslh on hand 0.05 010
Cheques/ drafts on hand 29 49.90
Bank balances (including bank deposits) 73.97 121.44
Cash and Cash equivalents as restated as at the year end 76,98 171.44

J

Notes ;

As per our report of even dale

e MZ.
Clurrternd Accountanis

|-r:$ep_is ation No. mﬁ:\

Vishal Vilas
rtner

. & Associates

Place: Mumbai

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 May 2017 Date: 22 May 2017

Suketu Nareshbhai Shah
Director
DIN: 07211283

« Includes cash collateral of Rs. 5.18 crore {Previous year Nil) as at lhe balance sheet date maintained by the group for collateral of dispuled indirect tax cases.

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statements”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

A,

b)

Company Information

Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (Formerly known as Lafarge India Limited) (“the Company”)
is a limited company domiciled and headquartered in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office is located at Equinox Business Park,
Tower-3, 4th Floor, LBS Marg, Off BKC, Kurla {(West), Mumbai — 400070. The Company is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of Cement and Ready Mix along
with trading and manufacturing of Aggregates. The Company caters mainly to the domestic
market.

The consolidated financial statement of the Group for the year ended 31" March, 2017 was
authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of Directors on 22nd May, 2017.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary (together “the Group”) and
its jointly controlled entity have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The
consolidated financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 {as amended), notified
under section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act. These consolidated
financial statements are the first financial statements of the Group under Ind AS. The date of
transition to Ind AS is 1 April, 2015. Refer note 58 for an explanation of how the transition from
Indian GAAP {IGAAP) to ind AS has affected the Group’s financial position, financial performance
and cash flows.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

* certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)

* defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

Principles of Consolidation

i) The Consolidated Financial Statement comprises the financial statements of the
Company, its subsidiary and joint venture. Reference in these notes to the “group”
shall mean to include Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (Formerly known as Lafarge
India Limited) {and/or its subsidiary/joint venture consolidated in these financial
statements unless otherwise stated.

ii) The list of companies which are included in consolidation and the Parent company’s
holdings therein are as under:




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Name of the Company Percentage
Holding
March 31, 2017

a) Subsidiaries
1} Rima Eastern Cement Limited (formerly known as 100%
Lafarge Eastern India Limited)

b} Joint Venture
1) Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited 19.14%

Each of the above company is incorporated in India and financial statements are drawn upto the
same reporting date as that of the parent Company i.e. 31* March, 2017.

i) The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company
have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS 110 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”. The intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised
profits/losses if any are fully eliminated.

v} The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are
presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company’s separate
financial statements.

v) The excess cost of the Company of its investment in the subsidiary, on the acquisition
dates over and above the Company’s share of fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired and liability assumed in the subsidiary, is recognised in the Consolidated
Financial Statements as Goodwill. On the other hand, where the share of fair value of
net identifiable assets acquired and liability assumed as on the date of investment is in
excess of cost of investments of the Company, it is recognised as “Capital Reserve”.

vi} The Company’s investments in the joint venture are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment in the joint venture is initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amount is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Company'’s share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill
relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is not tested for impairment individually. If the Company’s share of losses of an joint
venture equals or exceeds its interest in joint venture, the Company discontinues
recognising further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of other
joint ventures. If the joint venture subsequently reports profit, the Company resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profit equals the share
of losses not recognised.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

c)

d)

Revenue recoghition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of gocds is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. It is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, related
discounts, incentives and volume rebates. It includes excise duty and excludes value added tax/
sales tax.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. Interest
income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the same is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost, except the freehold land used for mining. All other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost of the items net of
depreciation and impairment losses (if any). Acquisition cost inciudes expenditure that is directly
attributable to getting the asset ready for intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Items of spare parts that meets the definition of ‘property, plant and equipment’ is recognised
as property, plant and equipment. The depreciation on such an item of spare part will begin
when the asset is available for use i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. In case of a spare part, as it
may be readily available for use, it may be depreciated from the date of purchase of the spare
part.

Capital work in progress (‘CWIP’) is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any.
All the direct expenditure related to implementation including incidental expenditure incurred
during the period of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is accounted as CWIP
and after commissioning the same is transferred / allocated to the respective item of property,
plant and equipment.

Pre-operating costs, being indirect in nature, are expensed to the statement of profit=mtdas
and when incurred.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or
when retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The Group has a policy of capitalising overburden cost if the overburden removal exceeds
normal annual overburden removal by more than 50% and the total amount of stripping cost
refated to excess removal is more than Rs. 0.50 Crores.

Transition to Iind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the IGAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation (other than on mining land) is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate the cost
of assets, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives. Components having
value significant to the total cost of the asset and life different from that of the main asset are
depreciated over its useful life. The useful lives have been determined based on technical
evaluation which are higher than those specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act; 2013, in
order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The useful lives so determined are as follows:

Asset Type Useful life (in years)

Buildings and roads 5to 50

Plant and machinery 1to 30

Railway sidings and locomotives 30

Office equipment 5to 10

Vehicles 5

Furniture and fixtures 5to 10

Leasehold land Over the lease period

Mining tand Amortised on the unit of production
method based on extraction of limestone
from mines

Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in
proportion of actual quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable
mineral reserves.

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired / disposed off during the year
is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal. Cost of lease-hold
land is amortized equally over the period of lease.

Residual values, useful life of assets and methods of depreciation of prop Z
equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
ﬂ
o



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

e)

Investment property

Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Group has elected to continue with the
carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial
statements as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. 1 April 2015.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The Group depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date
of original purchase.

The Group, based on management estimate, depreciates the building over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the assets will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the IGAAP and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of the intangible assets,

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful liyss
underlying contracts where applicable, except for mining rights




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

g)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The useful lives so
determined are as follows:

Asset Type Useful life (in years)

Mining Rights Amortised on the unit of production
method based on extraction of
limestone from mines but restricted
upto the lease period (in case of
Leasehold Land)

Supplier agreement (Finite} Upto the validity of the
Contract

Trademark (Finite) 10

Software (Finite) 5

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level, and whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annuaily to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unfess the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is cansidered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:
1. In case of individual asset, at higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use;
and
2. In case of cash-generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent
cash flows), at the higher of the cash-generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and the
value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
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market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. In any case the growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth
rate for the products/industries in which the entity operates.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to
OClI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCl up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus,

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable
amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised,
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannct be reversed in future periods.

Leases

Group as a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
the profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant pertodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Group as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for
the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases,

Group as a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Borrowing costs




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

i)

its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial
period of time (Generally over twelve months} to get ready for its intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that a Group incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or
as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad
categories:

1. Financial assets at amortised cost

2. Financial assets at fair value

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entire in the
statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit and loss) (FVTPL), or recognized in
other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income) (FVTOCI)

Financial asset at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if following two conditions are met:
1. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
2. The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables,

Financial assets at fair value
Debt instruments
A debt instrument is classified as at fair value through OCI if following two conditions are met:
1. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractys
flows and selling the financial assets, and
2. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI
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Debt instrument included within the fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl).

All other investment in debt instruments not measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as
described above are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration, recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which ind AS 103 applies are classified as at fair value through profit or loss. For
all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on
an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at fair value through other
comprehensive income, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Profit and loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the fair value through profit or loss category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's statement of financial
position) when:
1. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
2. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred contro! of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets
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1. Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
2. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FYTOCI);

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

1. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those
default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date); or

2. Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the financial instrument).

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables.

Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2. Loans and borrowings
3. Financial guarantee contracts

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upoen initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to
be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the iiability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Off-setting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
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C. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment

- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
the Group’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged,
hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCl in the
cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions and firm commitments. The ineffective portion relating to foreign
currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to
commodity contracts is recognised in other income or expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCl are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-finangial
asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCl are transferred 3¢
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n)

carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or
rollover {as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the
foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The Group accounts
for investment in Joint venture using the equity method.

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures:

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures are separated into liability and equity components based
on the terms of the contract.

On issuvance of the convertible debentures, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in equity since conversion option meets ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of
associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible debentures shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. All the grants related to an expense
item are recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When grants relates to an assets it is
recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on the rates and tax laws e
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the entity
generates taxable income.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

o)

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognised in equity and not
in the statement of profit and loss.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their corresponding carrying
amounts for the financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:
1. deductible temporary differences;
2. the carry forward of unused tax losses; and
3. the carry forward of unused tax credits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax {(MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as
current tax. The Group recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there
is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normai income tax during the specified period,
i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Group reviews the
“MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent
the Group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and Net Realisable Value (N} 2"
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Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the actual level of production which
approximates normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs,

Stores, spares and other supplies: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis. Items of stores and spares that does not meet the definition of ‘property, plant
and equipment’ is recognised as a part of inventories.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Net Realisable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated
absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recoghised
during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The Group also has additional death benefit scheme
for specific set of employees. This death benefit scheme is unfunded.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit method. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
* The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Group recognises related restructuring cosgs
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or

asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an

expense in the statement of profit and loss:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

¢ Net interest expense or income

Other Long-term employee benefits

Other long term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss for the period in which the employee has rendered services. The expenses are recognised at
the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation technique.
Actuarial gains and loss in respect of other long term benefits are charged to the statement of
profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management,

Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by
the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Operating Segment:

The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business Segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured
consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

The Operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of
the Group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have
been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the
segment. Inter Segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily
determined based on market/fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which
refate to the Group as a whole and are not allocated to segments on a reasonable basis have
been included under "unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities".

Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments:
General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or con HE]
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecofia®
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will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;

A present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;

A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources
is remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets,

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Group's earnings per share is the net profit for
the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The presentation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Ind AS which requires
the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Such estimates and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these
estimates.

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revisg
future periods affected.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following
notes together with the accounting policies:

Note 39 - Current tax expense

Note 40 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations

Note 52 - Provisions and contingencies

Note 4 — Impairment of assets (both financial and non-financial)

Note 22 - Site restoration provision

Note 44 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Note 2 — Useful life of Property, plant and equipment

Note 4 — Useful life of Other intangible assets

Note 58 — Existence of joint control and classification of joint arrangement

Current and non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
1. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period,
Or
4. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
1. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
2. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,
Or
4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
maonths after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating
cycle.

Foreign currency translation
ltems included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional curreg:

/

presentation currency.



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

y)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at functional currency, using the foreign
exchange rate at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical
reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date
of the transaction,

At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
functional currency using the foreign exchange rate at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or the statement of
profit and loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income or the statement of profit
and loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
1. Inthe principal market for the asset or liability,
Or
2. in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liahility.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest,

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
1. Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for iden
Liabilities.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

z)

aa)

2. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

3. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair vaiue measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

Exceptional items

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Group is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Group, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the financial statements.

Business combinations under common control
Common control business combinations include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or
businesses, between entities within a group.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted far
using the pooling of interests method. Under pooling of interest method, the assets and
liabilities of the combined entity are reflected at their carrying amounts, the only adjustment
that are made are to harmonize accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods are restated as if
the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if business
combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from
that date.

The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the
transferor is transferred to capital reserve and presented separately from other capital reserves
with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes.

bb) Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule lH, unless otherwise stated Amrymount
appearing as Rs.0.00 represents amount less than Rs.50,000.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

cc) Standards issued but not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Group

Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendment) Rules, 2017 (the ‘Amendment rules’} on 17 March 2017, notifying amendment to
Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

The amendment to Ind AS 7 introduces an additional disclosure that will enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

These amendments shall come into force on the 1st day of April, 2017 and Group shall apply the
amendments in its financial statements for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017.

During initial application of the amendment in Ind AS 7, Group will have to give reconcnllatlon
between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arisiag
financing activities.
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Nuotes Lo o lidated financial
AN amontts are s INR crores, ualess otterzise slated)

3. Investment property

for the year ended 31 March, 2017

Description Amount

Cost as at 1 April 2015 [A) 139

Adlitions

Disprwatls/ transfer

Cost as at 31 March 2016 (C) 1.59

Ashililions

Dispumals/Aransier .

Cost as at 31 March 2017 (E} 139

Accumulated depreciation as at T April 2015 (B}

Depreciation for e yeat 08

Diinpurals/ Iramsfer

Accumulated depreciation ax At 31 March 2016 {D} 0.08

Dopreciation lor the vear s

Dispusals/ iransles

Accumulated deprecidlion as at 31 March 2017 (F) 016

Net carcying amount 45 41 1 April 2015 (A)- (B) 1.59

Net carcying amount 44 4l 31 March 2016 (C)- (D} 1.51
1 1.43

Net carrying amount ae at 31 March 2017 (E}- (F)

For ivesl
wvar Ry, 1,39 vrores)

4. Goodwill and Other intangible assets

st property existing aw un the date af ransitlon e group has waenh prvvious GAAP valie as doonsed cost. The group has reveived inteperdent broker's quale Rar paer iase of Hus investien] propeey a1 Re. 1.39 cenne {provious

Other Intangible Assete
Description Goadwill
P Software Mining righls Trade Mark Nen Compete Supglicrs Tolal
Agreemenl Agreement
Cost as a1 1 April 2015 {A) {Refer Note below} 39.85 17.81 10.00 TL.90 - 139.56 1,401.23
Aallilions 232 M - 4.66
Disposals/ mljustments (.60 = (0.60))
Cosl as ut 31 March 2016 {C) 41.57 015 10.0¢ 71.90 - 143.62 140123
Addditivins H33 H3
Axlpritinny i Bossiness Combination { Refer nole 31) 86207 AY0.60 1778 1,370.51 [ B ey
Disperatls/adjustwnly 13} s . (1105) -
Cost ae at § October 2016 (E} 4152 096,55 506.68 71.5¢ 17.78 1,534.41 ,295.50
Addiinsis .35 133 -
Dt 5 dnljuisssiariin o) (0.1 .
Cos s 2t 31 March 2017 (G) 5607 896.55 506.66 71.90 17.78 1548.96 3,295.50
Accumulated amortisation a3 at 1 April 2015 (B} .88 613 10.00 71.90 - 11991 851.64
Aanorhsation for (e period 6.26 158 73
Dhispomals fadjustanients (.66 - - 0.60)
Accumulated amortisation a3 at 31 March 2016 {D} 37.5¢ TN 10.00 7190 - 127.15 851.64
Amewlisalion for the perivd 061 u.77 138
Dispusals fadjustinmnls 0.05) . - (D.03)
Accumulated amort{salion as at 4 Oclober 2016 (F) 38.10 8.48 10,00 71.90 - 12848 651,64
Anvortisalion for the period 073 9.4 H.BY 23% L7 A
Dispursals fad - - - .
Accunsulated amortisalion as at 31 March 2017 {H) 3685 17.7% 34.83 71.90 p -] 16558 851.64
Nel carrying amount as a1 April 2005 (A)- [B) 7.97 1168 - 1955 549,59
Nel carrying amount as at 31 March 2016 {C- (D} .03 1244 - . - 1647 549.59
Net carrving amount as at Qclober 4, 2006 (E)- (F) 342 88807 49666 - 12.78 1,405.93 2,442,486
Net carrying amount 48 a1 31 March 2017 (G- (H) 17.22 B878.77 471,83 - 15,56 1,383.38 2,443.86

Note:

The gresups bas avaibed T deemed cosdusemplion in relation b the intangible it on (he date of ransition {is 1 April 2013} Refer Bolow for the gross Bock vahae and 1he

SAAP:
Description Gross Block Accumulated Net Block*
Amortisalion
Guoanh 140123 B34 549.59
Soltware 3985 IR 797
s Rigthis ¥ 1532 A1) 219
e Mlasgh 1000 100
MNon Compele Ageevinent 7190 7190 -
Total 1,538.30 971.55 866,75

* Comiderl as deenied cost at 1 April 2013

# There has boer an adgustment on transition date. Refer nole 36 on transition (o IND-AS 101 for deails.

acvumulated ssortisalion on April 12013 wwder the previos
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Notes io ¢ lidated financial for the year ended 31 Maxch, 2017

(AN amounnts are in INR crores, unless othertoise slated)

Impairment {esting of goodwill with indefinile lives

Gasodwll paeslaing 1o the Lo CGUS belosy, whiclh are alsi vpeeating and reporlable sepments, for impairment kesting:
» Coment CGU
* Roewdy Mix CGU

Careymy it of goondwill pertains teach of s CGUs:
Cement RMX
31:Mar HMar-16 -ApL- 31-Map17 -Mar-16 OL:Aprls )
Coodwill 201785 123.58 12356 426.01 426,01 426.01

The Company perfurmod its anpual ipasement test for yeses ondend 11 March 2007 and 35 March 206 cospeively st inaccordance with IND AS 101 a1 the date of lransiton IND AS i b April 2005, No Goodwill ipairnsent was
dvenwnl necessary as at 1 April 2013

i. Cement CGU
incdd sl am b value it ety (o projes lions covering o live-yeer poriod. Thee progected cnb flows love heen upadated 1o

mpairment esting during the carrent pear is 15.06% and cash ows beyorid the fviptar peeind an extrapoltod using o 30% growtl rate hat is
n use and hence ere is no spainmen

wont of v Comoent CGU, Rs.AA450 Crs.as al 11 Aan 17, hat boen deen
wl far Cement. The pre-tas cliscount rate apphied 1o cash Tow projections fo
verape groswth rate for The indestey 1t was concluded thal the i

avelles Utlwe b
i <anime s flwe

w lesy costs of disposal exceeded Hh val

Ji. Ready Mix CGU

The tevoverably anwe
huve boen wprdwted i reflect the demaink for Ready mi. The predas disconnt rate applied ta cash law projecions for impairment testing J
10% growlly rate 1l 5 the sanw as twe kg term averagy growth e for the industry. 1 was concluded il e fair value bess costs of ddisposal excesded U val

M e Resacly i CGL, RS89 Crs. as it M-Mag-17, has beon detormined bsed o a value in use calealation using cash fluw frojections from financiel budgets cavering & liveyear peekod. The progocied cash ows
ip; Uhe cureent year is 13.06% and cash flows Deyned (b five-year period are extrapolated wsing &

ndd Brssar Hheres is o inpairawit.

Key assumplions used for value in use calculalions

whiticn of vitlue in use far both units is Most easitive le e following asamplions:

1} Sabes Geowth rawe
L35 Raw Malerial prico inflution

11} Marked prowih rale

Sales Growth Rate - Manageownl expes ts o sballe sthes growth rate over e korevast period, 1he skanageasent further expects e group position in relatives W its competilors Lo strengien fallowing sales aggressive largels taben by the groap.

Raw Material Price inflation - Past materinl prive muovenkenls are used as indicalors of fture price ssvenunls.

Nlarked goonvlh rate - Manogement expecis e group posilion i Cement & RMX business ko be stable siver he lorecast period, the managenient further expecls the group posidon I refative o s comg ) pthen foll 4t anlen
s Laegets liken by The group.

sumplions

peate] T

s ol L ey plions for the bl amuount ane dis

Sales Growth Rate - Managenwnl recognisas The effect of new enteant and addilional capacily exy of exisling, il s mel Lo have material adverse impac on the forecasts.

et has considered the possibiiy of greater thaw forecast imomases in caw material price inflalion. This may oveur il antivipaled regulatory changes resull inan incned
increase o the costomer, for Cemenl CGL raw malerial prices do mot vary si

in demwand thal cannol i

Raw Material Price inflation - The auana
vt by suagpliers, [ prices of e materials inveease gevater than e forecast grive inflaton, ten the RRE CEU will Bave lo s on s

Mlarkel growth mte - Basead on wulstral data aml infrastraclure growih sclion lakes by the gavernment, the geoups is o Lhe view Tt the growth rate will be highes Usan the forecast eelamaled by The group,

While 1l 1% snlibely For all The above assumplions 0 move adveesely lagether, it would require a significant inerease/ decroase to result inan impairment charge,



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(AN amotints are i INR crores, unless otherunse sialed)

As at As al Asal
31 March 2M7 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Particulars

5, Non current investments
Unquoted, valued at cost unless staled otherwise

a. Investment in joint venture

261,300 (31 March 2016 - 861,300, 1 April 2015 - 861,300} equity shares of Rs, 10/- each fully pard up wn Wardha
Vaalley Coal Field Private Lumited {Refer Note below) 086 086 085

Less: Provision for impairment {086} {0.86) {0.86)

Note :

The Ministry of Coal had allotted a coal block in the state of Maharashtra to a consortium in which the group is a member The group plans te carry out mining activities through
Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited, a joint venture Company incorporated in India as a special purpose vehicle. The group’s ownership in the jointly controlled entity is
19.14%, The other owners in the joint venture being [ST Steel & Power Limited (53.59%) and Ambuja Cements Limiled {(27.27%).

In prior years, the allatment of the caal block has been cancelled and the Joint Venture (JV) company has been show caused for allegedly not achieving the progress milestones in the
devetopment of the mine. Deallocation of the coal block has been challenged belfore the Hon'le Delhi High Court and the matter is sub-judice. The guarantees given by the JV has
also been sought to be invoked but the same has been stayed by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court subject to the guarantee being kept alive. Subsequently such guaraniee furnished by tive
group has been cancelled. (Refer note 47)

«. Investment in olhers

i- Equily investment {at F¥TOCI)

1,925,924 (31 March 2016 - 1,925,624, 1 April 2015 - 1,925,924) Class A equity shares of Rs. 10/ each fully paid-

up i VS Lignite Power Private Lid., 1.93 1.93 193

ii. Debl investment (at FVTIL)
4,676,298 (31 March 2016 - 4,828,298, 1 April 2005 - 4,828,298) 0.01 % cumulative class A redeemable preference

shares of Rs, 10/- each Fully paid-up in VS Lignite Power Private Ltd. 4.83 483 483
Less: Provision for impairment (6.76) 6.76} {6.76)
6. Loans

Unsecured, considered goad

Loans 1o related party - - 0.12
Subtotal (3) - - 0.12
Doubtful

Loans to related party # 1.07 1.07 -
Less: Provision for doubtful loans {1.07) {1.07) .
Sub total {k) . . .
Tolal {asb) - - 0.12

# Represents intercorporate loan given 10 Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited for working capital requirements.

7. Other non-current financial assels

Unsecured, considered good

Deposits with govt authorities and others 1A T8 137,69

Subtotal (a} 3 7 LFEl. ]

Doubiful

Deposits with Govi, authorities and others 13 223 i

Less: Provision for doubtful deposits {2.58) (2.23) (3.3
Subs total {b) a B

Total (a+b) 128.81 77.84 127.69

o
% %
2 <.

& (MUMBAN B *
EV 70

(oay
P17

Q
Wo



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited”)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al amonnts are it INR crores, unless otherunse stted)

Particulars As at Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

8. Other non current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Capnial advances 46.22 51,15 66.96
Advances recoverable 033 0.52 14
Prepaid expenses 1.20 0.87 0.38
Loans/ advances lo employees - - 0.58
Balances with excise authorities 0.81 - 045
Industrial promotional assistance 22876 173.84 17318
Advange income-tax (net of provision for taxaton] 14653 52.74 55.27
Sub total {a) 42387 279.12 298.17
Doubtful

Capital advances 1.26 1.26 1.26
Less: Provision fot doubtful advances {1.26} {1.26) {1.26)
Subtotal (b) - - -
Advances recoverable - - 0.62
Less: Provision for doubiful advances - - {0.62)
Sub total (c} - - -
Tolal {a+b+c) 423.87 279.352 298,17

9, Inventories
(Valued al cost or NRY whichever is lower)

Raw matenals $1.57 69.23 60.89
(incides in transit and stock with thard party Rs.6.30 crore (31 March 2016 - Rs.8,18 crore, 1 April 2015 -
Rs.7.61 crore)

Waork-in-progress 12888 136.46 12042
(includes in transit Rs.8.55 crore (31 March 2016 - Rs4.87 crore, 1 April 2015 - Rs.6.10 crore)

Finished goods $0.46 7047 55.52
(includes in transit - Rs, 0.96 (3t March 2016 - Rs.4.36 crore, 1 April 2015 - Rs.10.57 crore)

Stores and Spare Parts, Packing Material and Fuel 140.1% 182.03 20342

tincludes in transit and stock with third parties Rs. 11.05 crore (31 March 2016 - Rs.34.08 crore, 1 April 2015-
Fs.25.18 crore)
Tolal 361.04 458,19 440.25

10. Current investments
Quoted, valued a1 fair value through sialement of profit and loss

Investments in Mutual Funds

Reliance Liquid fund (1,776.68 Units) 070 - -
SBI Premier Liquid fund {2,166.93 Units) 0.55 - -
IZICI Pru Institutional Liquid Plan - 51 Growth (3,783,533 Units) 90.86 - -
HDFC Liquid Fund - Growth {190,682 Units} 61.01 - -
Tata Liquid Fund - Reguiar Plan - Crowth {230760.726 Units} 68.99 - -
Birla Cash Plus- IP - Growth {1542456.424 Unis) 40.18 - -
SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Super Institutional - Growth (154758.617 Unils) 39.40 - -
DSP Blackrock Liquidity Fund- IP-Darly Growth (176834.428 Units) a0 - -
UTI Money Market - IP - Growth (382460.925 Units) 69.49 - -
Total 412,19 - -
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 41219 - .
Aggregate markel value of quoled investments 412.19 - -

11. Trade receivables

Secured, considered good 134.90 187.07 157.05
Unsecured, considered good 309.32 336.30 30114
Doubtful 56.25 55.37 50.27

50047 578.74 508.46
Provision for doubtful trade receivables {56.25) (35.37) (50.20)
Total 444.22 523,37 458.19

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the group either severally or jointly with any ether person. Nor any trade or other reveivable gré
firms or private companies respectively in which any director 15 a partner, a director or a member.
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as “Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(A amowirts are ity INR crores, ienless otherunse stnted)

Particulars As at Asal A§ at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 005 010 0.10
Balances with bank

- N ¢urrent accounts 47.18 48.44 56.44
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 2161 7300 164.96
Cheques/drafts on hand 2.96 49.90 7290
Tolal 71.80 171.44 294.40
Notes

Shon term depasits are made for varyng periods depend ing, on the immediate cash requirements of the group and earns interest at respective short term deposils rates.

13. Other bank balances
Earmatked {restricted) balances with banks for:

Channel financing facikity of dealers - - 396
Collateral fof disputed indirect tax cases 5.18 - -
Total 518 - 396
14, Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances Lo related paries - 176 082
Loans/ advances to employees 199 1.72 284
Sub total (2) 199 148 3.6
Doubtiul
Loans and advances to related parties . . 0.16
Provision for doubiful advances - . 0.16)
Sub total (b} - - -
Total (a+h) 1.99 148 3.66

15. Other current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0283 202 1.2
Derivative assets (Refer Note 43) 0.00 002 -
Deposits with gevt. authorities and others 9948 87.96 62.36
Sub total (a) 100.31 £8.00 7038
Doubtful

Crposits with govi. authorities and others 447 449 153
Pravision for doubtful advances (447} {4.49) (154}
Sub otal (b} . - M
Total {a+b) 100.31 88.00 70.58

16, Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good, unless olherwise stated

VAT recoverable x5
Balances with excise authorities 3768
Advances recoverable &278
Fiscal incentive receivable 120,36
Other receivables 5.66
Advance income-tax {net of provision for laxation) 7.50
Prepaid expenses 1075
Tolal 276.88

0\
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
AN amonnls are i INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As al Asat As at
31 March 2017 1 March 2016 T April 2015
17, Equity share capital
Authorized*
780,110, 31 March 2016 - 3,801,110,000 shares, 1 April 2015 - 3,801,110, h ity sl f Rs. 10/~
ot 1000 (31 Marcl pril 2015 - 3,80 000 shares) equity shares of Rs. 780041 3801 1 3801 11
1,000,000,000 (31 March 2006 - 1,000,000,000 shares, 1 April 2415 - 1,000,000,000 shares) prefesence shares of Rs.
10/ each F i 1,00000 1,000.00 1,000.00
8,801.11 4,801.11 4,801.11
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
150,000000 {31 March 2016 - 456,412,778 shares, 1 April 2015 - 456,412,778 shares) equily shares of Rs. 10/- each 150.00 456.41 456.41
150.00 45641 456.41

*The movement in authorised and issued share capital during the year is due to nwerger scheme ( Refer note no.51)

{a) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one ¢lass of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share_ The shareholders are entitled 10
dividends in Indsan Rupees, praposed by the Board of Directors and subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meetings.

1 the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribunion of all preferential amounts, The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{b} Shares held by Nirma Limited (Halding Company) and shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company

Nirma Limi Holding com w.¢.f. 4th Oclobe also Refer note

No of Shares 14,99,99.994 - -
Sharehoiding % 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Einanclere Lafarge §AS
No of Shares - 39,23,62,997 39,23,63,001

Shareholding % 0.00% 85.97% 85.97%

Paris Cement [nvesiment Holdings Limiled
No of Shares . - 6,40.49.776

Shareholdmg % 0.00% 0.00% 14.03%

Holderind [nwv: nts Limited {Subsidiary of the ¢xstwhile ultimale helding compan:
Ne of Shares - 6,40,4%,776 -
Shareholding % - 14.03% -

¢} Shares held by subsidiary of the ersiwhile ullimate holding company

Socrete Financiere Immobiliere et Mobiliere SAS - 1 1
Lafarge SA - 1 1
LafargeHolcim Energy Solutions - 1 1
CBA Holding - 1 1
Lafarge Industrial Ecology Intemational - 1 1

As per records of the company, including its regster of shareholder,/ members and other declarations received from shareholder regarding beneficial imerest, the above shareholding
represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

d) Aggregale number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately
preceding the reporting date:

Equity shares issued pursuant 10 merger scheme (Refer note 511 (No, of shares) 15,00,00,000




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(AN amomuts are in INR crores, tinless otheruise stafed)

Asal As at Asat

Particulars
M March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Nature and purpose of reserve
A« Capital Reserve
Capital reserve is used 10 record excess of net assets taken over pursuant 10 amalgamation.

B - Debenture Redemplion Reserve

In accordance with Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under, pursuant lo issue of non convertible debentures, the group has created Debenture Redemption Reserve of Rs. 183
crore being the proportionate amount for the elapsed period with reference lo total period of such debenture, During FY 2015-16, the group had created Debenture Redemption
Reserve of Rs. 25.52 crore and transkerred back Rs. 87.50 crore to retained ings on the redemption of entire erstwhile issued debentures.

C - Cash flow hedge reserve

The group uses hedging instruments 45 parl of its management of foreign currency risk associaled with Us highly probable forecast purchase. For hedging foreign currency risk, the
group uses foreign currency forward contracts which are designated as cash flow hedges, To the exlent these hedge are effective; the change in fair value of bedging instrument is
recogmsed i the cash flow hedging reserve. Amount recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to profit or loss when bedged tem affects profit or loss.

D - Securities premium

Securities premium reserve 1s used to record the premiuny on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

18. Botrowings
i) Secured borrowings
a. Term Loan {Refer Nole "a” below)

Indian rupee loan from banks . 15000 30000
b. Non convertible debeniured (Refer Note “b* below)
£.66% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2021 (8000 nos.} 774.02 - i
B.57% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par en 14.09.2020 {8000 nos.} 77990 . -
8.47% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2019 (12,500 nos.) 1,227.80 . -
827% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemabile at par on 14.09.2018 (11,500 nos.) 1,138.04 - .
il Unsecured borrowings
Inter corporate deposit from holding company (Refer Note "d” below} ki) ki - -
2% Unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into equity shares (Refer Note "¢” below) 67.39 - -
4,298.46 150.00 300.00
Note :

4. The Term loan was secured by a first pari passu charge on all mavable znd immovable properties at the Integrated Cement Unit located at Village-Bhawaliya, Tehasil: Nimbahera,
Disteict-Chittorgarh, Rajasthan-312620, India; and Cement Blending Unit at Village-Chideya, Tehsil-Charkhi Dadri, District-Bhiwani, Haryana, India, both present and future, but
excluding stocks of raw materials, semi-finished goods and Anished goods, consumable stores & spares, book debts, cutstanding monies and receivable from time fo time secured in
favour of working capital facilities. The rate of interest applicable to this term loan is Bank's Base Rate plus 50 basis point. The rate of imterest was in the range of 9.50% to 10.50%. No
term loan is outstanding as on 31st March, 2017 and above charge has been satisfied.

b The Company has issued Non convertible debentures (NCD) of Rs. 4000.00 erores which are secured by first ranking exclusive charge in favaur of the debenture Irustee over all
rghts, tile, interest and benefit of the Company in respect of and over the fixed assets including plant and mach=ery, equipments, land, immovable properties, investments and
mtellectual properties.

. Umhisted, unsecured compulsory convertible debentures carry interest (accruing quarterly) at the rate of 2% on the oulstanding amount. Each conypulsory convertible debentures
(D) are convertible at par and as such, 1 CCD of INR 1,00,000/- will be converted into 10,000 equity share of INR 10-each. Refer summary of significant accounting policies for
#xplanation on presentation of liability and equity component of CCD's

d The inler corporate deposit of Rs. 300.00 crores is long term in nature and carries interest rate of 8%.

Repa hedule of Borrowi
Not later than one year - 150,00 150.00
Later than one year and not laler than \wo years 1,15000 15000 15000
Later than two years and not later than five years 2.850.00 - 150,00
19, Other non-current financial liabilities
Liatlity for employee relaied expenses 73 7.66 79
Other liabilities U 01 0.56
Total 0.76 767 8.50
20). Provisions (non-current)
Provision for death benefit {Refer note 39) 3150 324 3.60
Provision for sile restoration {Refer note 52) 2381 7.31 6.66
Proviston for comractor's charges (Refer note 52) 21.34 17.28 18.46
Total 48.65 27.83 2§.72
21. Deferred tax liabilities {net}
A| Deferred Lax Hability (Refer note 38) 163512 SATAE 527.97
- Depreciation and amortisation i 49 5T 48 527.39
- Deferred tax liability on bussness combination {Refer nole 51} 1,083,653 . -
«Others - 0.38
] Deferred tax asset (Refer nole 38) 410.74 460.57 486.86
- Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act 57,59 51.96 776
- Provision for doubtful debvts and advances 24.20 229 1913
= Unabsorbed depreciation 12335 N 33319
- Cthers 10.05 1087 18.85
MAT credit entitlement 195.55 14153 87.93
Tatal 1,224.38 126.89 41.11




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited®)
Notes to consclidatled financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2057
(AN muonnts are i INR croves, unless otheranse staled)

Particulars As at Asal A.f., aL
3 March 2017 N March 2016 1 April 2015

22, Borrowings
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 15.92 15250 506.96

15.92 152.50 506.96
23, Trade payables
Trade payables 734.69 619.80 58098
Due 1e micro and small enterprises (Refer nole 49} 5.30 6329 7.37
Total 739.99 626.09 588.35
24, Other current financial labilities
Creditors for capital expenditure 30,66 nay 6493
Security deposits from dealers, transporters and others 368.56 368.81 356.05
Derivative liabilities 008 0.69 371
Total 399.60 40147 424.6%
25, Provisions {current)
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 39) N 190 -
Provision for leave benefits 12.89 1716 1341
Provision for death benefit (Refer note 39} o4l 030 024
Provision for wealth lax - - 0.06
Provision for indirect taxes/ litigations {Refet note 51 193.05 177.92 13728
Provision for dealer's discounts (Refer note 52) 64.80 47.00 55.19
Provision for contractor’s charges (Refer note 52) 190 1.64 046
Provision - Others 345 363 a7z
Total 276.50 250.15 200.36
26. Other current liabilities
Advance from cusionmers 69.56 377 1633
Liability for employee related expenses 64.24 50124 4339
Liability towards discount to dealers 11518 84.94 103.69
Others (including statuiory dues, provision for expenses} 83.23 7571 7508
Total 332.21 24566 268.49




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017

(AN amonnts are in INR erores, unless ofienivise stafed)

Particulars 2016-17 201516

27. Revenue from operations

Sale of products {including excise duly)
Finished goods 569547 5.767.02
Traded goods 1633 18.18

Other operaling revenue

Rentals under own your wagon scheme 017 015

Recoveries of shortages & damaged cement 1.62 0.03.

Industrial promotional assistance - fiscal incentive (Refer note below) 86.15 86.44

Provision/liabililies no longer required, written back 27.21 81.24

Scrap sales 551 5.10
Total revenue from operations 583246 5,958.16
Detail of products sald

Finished goods sold

Cemenl 4,580.02 4,63697
Readymix Concrele 1,064.73 1,.071.20
Aggregates 9.79 3014
Fly Ash Bricks 7.2% 682
Clinker 33.64 21.89
5,695.47 5,767.02
Traded goods sold
Apgregates 15.07 1267
Readymix Concrete - 1.96
Others 1.26 A.55
16.33 18.18
Note;

The group has recognized as other operaling revenue Industrial Promotional Assistance (IPA) of Rs.54.94 Crores (Previous Year Rs.55.90 Crores) related to
Mejia Cement Plant, from the Government of West Bengal under the West Bengal Incentive Scheme 2004. Similarly, IPA of Rs.31.21 Crores (Previous Year
Rs.30.54 Crores) has been recognised related to Chittorgarh Cement Plant, from the Government of Rajasthan under the Rajasthan Investment Promotion
Scheme 2010,

28. Other income

Gain on sale of current investements (net) 1419 13.02
Fair value gain on financial instruments al fair value through profit and loss 222 1.2
Interest income on bank deposits 310 15.60
Interest income on others 4.15 3.56
Nel gain on disposal of property plant and equipment - 0.28
Other non-operating income 5.61 541
Tolal other income 29.27 39.09

29, Cost of materials consumed

Lnventory at the beginning of the year 69.23 60.89

Add: Purchases 1,084.27 1,119.76
115350 1,180.65

Less: Inventory at the end of the year {41.51) (69.23)
111199 1,111.42

Details of material consumed

Cement 280,25 256.31
Aggregales (including royally paid on extraction) 16518 177.24
Limestone (including royalty paid on extraclion) 116.95 111.96
Fly ash 105.63 10440
Gypsum 93.79 104.10
Slag 139.40 12117
Sand 12901 131.00
Admixtare 27.01 36.03
Others 74,77 69.15

Tolal 1,111.99 111142




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as “Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al munowirts are i INR creres, wiless obierivise staled)

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Details of invenlory as at end of lhe year
Cement 4.63 310
Limestone 295 1145
Aggregales 278 337
Fly ash 0.75 118
Gypsum 17.94 28.26
Slag 3.02 5.29
Sand 2.32 277
Admixture 3N 453
Boulder 0.81 208
Others 240 5.20
41.51 69.23
30, Purchase of stock in trade
Aggregates 1279 732
Others 1.22 259
14.01 10.21
31. Changes in inventeries of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 5046 7047
Work-in-progress 128.88 136.46
179.34 206.93
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Tinished goods 7047 55.52
Work-in-progress 136.46 12042
206.93 17594
Changes in inventories of finished goods 20.01 (14.95)
Changes in invenlories of work-in-progress 7.58 (16.04)
759 {3099}
Details of inventory
Finished goods
Cement 44.86 65.34
Aggregales 5.44 5.05
Others 0.16 0.08
5046 7047
Work-in-progress
Clinker 12133 12999
Others 775 647
128.38 13646
Todal 179.34 206.93

32, Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 250.32
Contribution to provident fund and other retirement benefits 22.84
Staff welfare expenses 16.81

289.97




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al mmonnts are in INR croves, unless ofiierinse slated)

Particulars 201617 2015-16
33. Other expenses
Consumption of stores & spares (including write offs) 121.29 140,00
Consumplion of packing materials 154 94 151.74
Computer hardware renl /maintenance 8.58 9.55
Lease rent {Refer nete 41) 43.56 40.63
Rates & taxes 48.22 83.60
Insurance 879 946
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 44.00 46.90
Buildings and roads 5.16 887
Others 29.01 26.51
SR expenditure (Refer note 55) 5.82 4.88
Advertisement and sales promotions 4150 33.86
Travelling and conveyance expenses 26.09 25.86
Legal and professional charges 2019 18.19
Pavmeni lo auditors (Refer note below) 0.61 1.36
Bad debis written ofl 0400 0.
Donations 018 054
Provision for bad/doubtful debts and advances 5.50 783
Property, plant & equipment/ CWIP written off 7.27 9.88
Royalty and Managerial & Technical Service charges - 7334
Net lass on foreign currency transaction and Iranslation 033 5.81
Equipment hire, labour and subconiract charges 157.97 155.11
Security service charges 10.68 9.24
Miscellaneous expenses 36,79 4970
776.48 912.87
Paymenl lo auditor {including service tax)
Audit fee 046 0.73
Tax audit fee 005 o
QOther Services 0.05 043
Reimbursement of expenses 0.05 0.09
Total 0.61 1.36
34. Depreciation and amertization expense
Depreciation on tangible assels 27396 24254
Amortization of intangible assets 3848 784
Depreciation on investmenl property 0.08 0.08
31252 25046
35. Finance costs
Interesli on:
Non convertible debentures 178.54 2899
Term loans 1257 35.63
Inter corporale deposits 11.69 -
Compulsory convertible debentures 2.57 -
Securily deposits from dealers, transporlers and others 2289 26.26
Cash eredit accounts - 0.01
Others 233 0.99
Other finance costs
Fair value loss on financial instrumenls al fair value through profit and loss 0.20 -
Amertization of ancillary borrowing costs 0.38 112
23117 93,02
Borrowing cost capitalised - {5.12)
2317 87.90
36. Earnings per equity share
Profit allribulable to equity shareholder 165.67 230.85
Weighted average number of equity shares EPS (Nas.) 30,69,84,081 45,64,12,778
Unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into equity shares (Nos)* 49,04,10,939 -
Weighted average numbet of equity shares for basic & dilutive EPS (Nos.) 79,73,95,040 456412778
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 208 5.06
Dilutive earning per share (in Rs.) 208 5.06
Face vatue per Equity Share (in Rs.) 10,00 10.00

* The unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into equity shares are lo be converted mandatorily; there is no cash settlement opt

with the groug or with the holder.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al amounts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

37. Tax expense
(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

2016-17 2015-16
Current income tax 57.01 53.60
Tax expense relating to earlier years (93.28) (0.16)
36.27) 53.44
Deferred tax liability (net)
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 123.75 140.81
Minimum Alternate Tax credit (57.01) (53.60)
Deferred tax expense 66.74 87.21
Tax expense for the year 3047 140.65
(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2016-17 2015-16
Tax Rate 34.608"% 34.608%
Profit before tax 196.14 37150
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (34.61%) 67.88 12857
Tax effect of:
Expenses inadmissible under Income Tax Act, 1961 0.07 1.88
Divestment expenses 6.16 10.98
Loss of amalgamating company disallowed 60.05
Adjustment related to earlier years™ (93.28)
Increase in business loss carried forward (24.38) -
Others 13.97 (0.78)
3047 140.65
Effective tax rate 15.53% 37.86%

* The Company in its [ncome tax returns has claimed the Industrial Promotion Assistance (IPA} received during the period FY 2009-10 to 2014-
15 as capital receipt. However, the Company has created provision for Income Tax in its books of accounts considering IPA as revenue receipt.

During the current year, based on ruling of the appellate authorities on appeals of the Company and judicial rulings of the appellate authagities
for other taxpayers, the Company has decided to reverse tax provision of Rs.93.28 crores created in earlier years on [PA in its bogks kg
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limiled {formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited”)
Notea 1o consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
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Note - 39
Employes Denefit
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All amounts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

41. Operating leases

Lease payments

{a) The group has taken various residential and commercial premises under operating leases. Further, certain arrangements entered
by group meet criteria specified in Appendix C of Ind AS 17 and are classified as embedded operating leases. The lease payments
recognised in the statement of profit and loss is Rs.43.56 Crore. (Previous year Rs. 40.63 Crore.)

(b) Future commitments of lease rentals on account of assets taken on non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

2016-17 2015-16
Less than one year 8.09 6.86
Between one and five years 8.25 8.05

16.34 14.91




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited"}
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All tmennts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

42, Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

A. Accounling classification and faiv values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information
for financial assets and financial labilities if the carrving amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying amount Fair value
Mlarch 31, 2017
INR FVTTL EVTOCI Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Current jnvestments 41219 . - 41219 41219 - - 412.19
Trade receivables . - 444.22 444,22 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 71.80 71.80 - . - -
Other bank batances - - 518 5.18 - . - B
Loans 1.99 199 - B - -
Others - - 22912 229.12 - - - -
Derivative assel 0.00 - - 0.00 - £.00 - 0.00
41219 - 752,31 1,164.50 412,19 0.00 - 41219
Tinancial liabilities
Borrowings 4,314.38 431438 - 4,314.38 - 4,314,38
Trade pavables - - 739.99 739.99 - - - .
Oihers . - 400.28 400.28 - . - .
Derivative lability 0.08 - - 0.08 - 0.08 - 0.08
0.08 - 5,454.65 5,454.73 - 4,314.46 - 4,314.46
Carrying amount Fait value
:;:":rh 1, 2016 FVTTL FVTOC] Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Tinancial assels
Trade recewables . - 523.37 52337 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalenis 171.44 171.44
Loans . - 348 348 - . - -
Others - - 165.82 165.82 - - - -
Derivative asset 0.02 - - 0.02 - .02 - .02
0,02 - 864.11 864.13 . 0.02 - .02
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - . 302,50 302.50 . 302.50 . 30250
Trade payables - - 626.09 626.00 . - - B
Others - - 408.44 408.44 - - - -
Derlvative Liability 0.69 - - 0.69 - 0.69 - 0.69
0.69 - 1,337.03 1,337.72 - 0319 - 303,19
Carrying amount Fair vaiue
m’; 203 FVTPL FVTOCL  Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assels
Tradle receivables - 458.19 458.19 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 234.40 294,40 - - - -
Other bank balances - - %6 39 - - - -
Loans - - 378 378 - - - -
Olhers - - 198.27 198.27 - - -
- - 958.60 958.60 - - - -
Financial liahilities
Borrowings . - 806.96 806.96 - 806.96 - 806.96
Trade and other payables - - 588.35 588.35 - - - -
Other - - 429.48 429.48 B - - -
Derivative Liability 371 - - 3.71 - 371

371 - 1,82479 1,828.50 - 810.67




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al amounts are in INR croves, unless otheiwise stated)

42. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

B. Financial risk management

The group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Credit risk ;

» Liquidity risk ; and

» Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s primary
risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The group’s risk management
assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the group, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the group’s activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee is
responsible for overseeing the group’s risk assessment and management policies and processes.

ii. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the group's receivables from customers. Credit risk i1s managed through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously menitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the group grants credit terms in the
normal course of business.

Trade receivables

The group’s exposure to credit risk is determined by the individual characteristics and specifications of each customer, The profile of the
customer, including the market risk of the industry has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk 15 managed through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the group grants credit
terms in the normal course of business.

Sununary of the grpup's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at1 April 2015

Neither past due nor impaired 198.99 291.47 279.74
Past due but not impaired
Past due 1--180 days 154.52 156.48 108.22
Past due 181-365 days 20.51 21.56 12.51
Past due 1 to 2 years 24,34 11.84 27.01
More than 2 years 45.86 42.02 30.71

444.22 523.37 458.19

Expected credit loss assessment for customers as at 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the group to determine credit losses. Historical
trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macro economic indicarors affecting
customers of the group have not undergone any substantial change, the group expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to
continue. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due are still collectible in full, based on historical
payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The allowance at 31 March, 2016 and 31 March, 2017 related to
several customers that may default on their payments to the group and may not pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic
circumstances.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follow :

2016-17 2015-16
Balance as at beginning of the year 55.37 50.27
Impairment loss recognised/ (reversed) 0.88 5.10
Balance at the end of the year 56.25 _ 5537
Cash and cash equivalents
The group held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banlhy i '- tions. The credit worthiness of such banks and
financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing b2 erisidered to be good.



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017

(All antounts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

42. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The group manages its
liquidity risk by ensuring, that it always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normai and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the group’s reputation.

The group has obtained both fund based and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The group also constantly
monitors, as and when required, funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintain financial liquidity. The
group also enjoys A1+ ratings from CRISIL on short term facilities from banks indicating very strong degree of safety regarding timely

payment of financial obligations and caries lowest credit risk.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The table below analyses the group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

* all non derivative financial liabilities

* Derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturites are essential for understanding the timing of the cash flows.

As at 31 March 2017

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other non-current financial liabilities
Trade payables
Cther financial current liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging

As at 31 March 2016

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Qther non-current financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial current labilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Fopward exchange contracts used for hedging

As at 1 April 2015

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
QOther non-current financial liabilities
Trade payables
Qiher financial current liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging

Contractual cash flows

More than
Total lyearorless 1-2years  2-5years 5 years
4,962.28 - 1,782.29 317999
0.76 0.76
739.99 739.99 -
399.52 399.52
0.08 006
Contractual cash flows
Total lyearorless 1-2years 2-5years M; re than
years
302.50 152.50 150.00 -
7.67 7.67 -
626.09 626.09
400.78 400.78 -
0.69 0,69
Contractual cash flows
More than
Total lyearorless 1-2years 25 years 5 years
806.96 500.00 696 -
850 8.50 -
588.35 588.35 -
420.98 42098 - -
3N 371




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited®)
MNotes Lo ¢ lidated financial st for the year ended 31 March, 2017
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42. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices {such as inlerest rates and foreign currency exchange rates) orin the
price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial insiruments, all foreign currency receivables

and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The group is exposed to market risk primarily related lo foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk.

a. Currency risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the profit and loss account and equity, where any transaction References more than one currency or where assets/ liabilities are

denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the enlity.

Considering economic envirenment w which the group operates, its operations are subject lo risks arising from Fluctuation in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relale to fluctuations in the

foresgn exchange rates of USD & EURO, on account of payables to foreign suppliers, for import of petcoke, gypsum and spares.

The geoup, as per Its risk mandgenment policy, uses foreign exchange Forward contracis to hedge foreign exchange exposure. The group does nol use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative

PUIpOsEs.

Exposure (o curmeny risk
The summary quantitative data about the group's exposure to currency risk as reported 1o the nianagement of the group Is as follows:

Amounts 1n INR {Crores) 3t March 2007 31 March 2016 01 April 2015
EUR UsD ELIR usc EUR ush
Accounis Receivable - - - 185 0.05 0.94
Accounts Payable 1.36 6.72 27.98 22.56 53.26 5.09
Net balance sheel exposure 1.36 6.72 27.98 20,71 53.21 4.15
Forward exchange contracls - - 11.17 16.86 24.22 -
136 6.72 16.81 3.85 28.99 4.15

Nel exposure

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening / weakening of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of group would result in increase or decrease in profit or loss and equity as shown in table below This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of Forecast sales and purchases. The following analysis has been worked out based on the exposures as

of the date of statements of financial position.

Profil or Joss

Effect in INR Crore Strengthening  Weakening,
3 March 2017

ELR (0.14) 0.4
vsm 067 0.67

Profit or loss

Effect in INR Crove Strengthening  Weakening
31 March 2016

EUR (1.07) 107
usp 0an 031

b. Interest rate risk

for changes in interest rates relates 10 fixed deposits and borrowings from financial institutions,

For details of the group’s short-term and long tern Joans and borrowings, including interest rate profiles, Refer to Note 18 and 22 of these financial statements.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(AN musanits are in INR crores, unless otherwise stafed)

43, Hedge accounting

The group performs hedging on its forecasted / firm foreign currency exposure in respect of import of goods and services from time to time ona 12 months rolling basis. The
group uses lorward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk arising from such imports. Hedging instruments are denominated in the same currency in which the imports
are made. Maturity of hedging instruments are less than 12 months.

The foreign exchange forward contract balances vary with the level of expected foreign currency transactions and changes In foreign exchange forward rales.

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
designated as hedging instruments 0.00 0.08 0.02

0.69 - 3.71

The cash flow hedges of the firm commitments during the year ended 31 March 2017 were assessed to be highly effective, and as at 31 March 2017, a net unrealj
0.06 crore {31 March 2016 - INR0.12 crores) and was included in other equity in respect of these contracts. The effective portion of INR 0.02 crore (31 M
crore) is charged to profit and loss,




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited {formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All amounts are in INR crores, nuless otherwise stated)

44, Netting off disclosure

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements and other similar agreements but not offset, as at March 31, 2016 and 1 April 2015

Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Particulars Gross Gross amonnt net off | o amounts ,
Amounts in balance sheet presented in financial
statements
31 March 2017
Financial assets
Trade receivables 444 47 (0.25) 444 22
Derivative asset 0.00 - 0.00
Total 444.47 (0.25) 444,22
Financial liabilities
Derivative Liabilities 0.08 - 0.08
Total 0.08 - 0.08
Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
Gross Gross amount net off |presented in financial
Particulars Amounts in balance sheet statements
31 March 2016
Financial assets
Trade receivables 528.06 (4.69) 523.37
Derivative asset 0.02 - 0.02
Total 528.08 (4.69) 523.39
Financial liabilities
Derivative Liabilities 0.69 - 0.69
Total 0.69 - 0.69

Effects of offsetting on balance sheet

Net amounts
Gross Gross amount net off |presented in financial
Particulars Amounts in balance sheet statements

1 April 2015

Financial assets

Trade receivables 460.56 (2.37) 458.19

Total 460.56 {2.37) 458.19

Financial liabilities

Derivative Liabilities 371 - 371

Total 3.71 - 3.

elas
. o ‘b“arge /’763’,' Q.

(a) Offsetting arrangements O ®-0
(i) CFA agents g MUMBAIY G *

The group engages the services of CFA agents for selling the cement. As per the terms of the agreement, group has 4ygh
offset balances with CFA against debtors balances if debtor has not paid for a period of 90 days. Hence such amount € bee :
offset in the balance sheet.



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(All aimouuts are in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

45. Capital management

The group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base 50 as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The group carefuly monitors cash and bank balances, deployment of surplus funds and regularly asseses any debt

requirements.

The group’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.
As at 31 March As at 31 March 2016  As at1 April 2015

2017

Total borrowings along with accrued interest 4,314.38 302.50 806.96
Less : Cash and bank balances & Current Investments {489.17) (171.44) {298.36)
Adjusted net debt 3,825.21 131.06 508.60
Equity 150.00 456.41 456.41
Other Equity 3,798.95 3,748.38 3,518 41
Total Equity 3,948.95 4,204.79 3,974.82

0.97 0.03 013

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(AL anprts are it INR crores, nuless otherwise stalei)

47, Conlingent Liabilities

ontl Liabili vided fo ect of: Asatdl March  Asati April
As at 31 March 2017 2016 2015

i, Claims against the group not acknowledged as debis: -

a. Dispuled demands in respect of Sales Tax by various sales lax authorities 2741 17.28 52.91
b. Disputed demand in respect of Royalty on Limestone by lhe State of Chhattisgarh 166.02 143.50 125.21
¢. Disputed demand in respect of Entry Tax by various tax authorities 36.98 20,19 19.18
d. Disputed demand in respect of Water cess by the State of Chhattisgarh 0.13 013 0.13
e. Disputed demand in respect of Excise Duty 167.46 160.91 146.32
f. Disputed demand in respect of Service Tax 251 1.48 0.92
g. Disputed demand in respect of VAT 1145 1239 8.33
h. Stamp Duty paid under protest for change of name from GKW to LRCL 1.80 1.80 1.80
i. Disputed demands in respect of Custom duties 1444 14.44 14.44
j. In respect of Income Tax 22447 114.92 3248
k. Other claims 20.44 1849 284
Againsi these, payments under protest/ adjusiments made by the group L 54.93 48.64
ii. Guarantees given by the group on behalf of its Jeint venture Company 551

The State of Chhattisgarh has filed a Revision Application challenging the adjudication erder of the
District Registrar and Collector of Stamps; Janjgir -Champa for alleged under-valuation of the
properties, which the group acquired from Raymond Ltd. Against this, Raymond Ltd. has filed a
Special Leave Petition before the Honorable Suprente Court, which has stayed the proceedings before
the Board of Revenue.

The Collector of Stamps, Raipur has commenced enquiry proceedings under Section 47 (A)(3) of the Amount not Amount not
Indian Stamp Act, 1899 questioning the amount of stamp duty paid by The Tata Iron and Steel determinable determinable
Company Limited (TISCO) on transfer of the immovable properties at Sonadih from TISCO to the

group. The group has filed a Writ Pefition in the Honorable High Court of Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh

challenging the enquiry commenced by the Collector of Stamps. The matter is pending before the

High Court.

The group's liability, if at all arises, in both the above cases, is restricted to 50% by virtue of business
transfer agreement between Lafarge and Raymond Ltd/TISCO

-

. In June 2012, the Competition Commission of India (CT) passed an Order levying a penalty of Rs. 490 crore on the greup in connection with a complaint filed by
the Builders Association of India agalnst leading cement companies (including Lafarge) for alleged violation of certain provisions of the Competition Act, 2002
The group filed an appeal before the COMPAT for setling aside the said Order of CCL The COMPAT granted stay on levying the penalty imposed on the
Company by CCI against deposit of 10% of the penalty amount. In December 2015, the COMPAT finally set aside the said Order of CCl andt remanded back to
CCI for fresh adjudication of the issues and passing of fresh Order. It alse allowed the group to withdraw the amount of 10% deposit kept with the CCI, However,
in August 2016 the case was reheard by CCl and it passed an Order levying a penalty of Rs. 490 crore on the group. The group had filed an appeal against the
Order before the Competition Appellate Tribunal (COMPAT'). The COMPAT has granted a stay on the CCl Order against a deposit of 10% of the penalty
antount, which has been deposited since. Based on advice of external legal counsel and the rights available with the group, na provision is considered necessary,

Vide letter F.No.13016/4%/ 2008-CA-1 dated 15th/16th November, 2012, Ministry of Coal had de-allocated the Dahegaon Makardhokra IV Coal Block allocated to
the Joint Venture Partners and had ordered invocation of bank guarantee of Rs. 255,93,000. The said order was chailenged by all joint venture partners, through
separale Wril Petitions before Hon'ble High Court of delhi and a stay was granted against invocation of bank guarantee. However, in view of Supreme Court

" orders dated 25th August, 2014 and 24th Seplember, 2014 in WP (Crl) No. 120/2012, the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi through its judgement dated 30th October,
2014, did not provide relief of cancellation of de-allocation of coal block and disposed of the all the three writ petitions of JV partners with a direction to Ministry
of Coal to take a decision in respect of each individual case whether bank guarantees ought lo be invoked or released. In pursuance, Ministry of Coal vide its letter
F.N0.13016/17/2014-CA-I (VOL. I} dated 04th August, 2015 erdered invocation of Bank Guarantee of Rs. 2,55,93,000/+, which has been challenged by all JV
partners through separate writ petitions before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. High Court of Delhi through its orders dated October 16,2015 and October 20, 2015
was pleasext to grant stay against any coercive steps subject to Bank Guarantee being kept alive.

=

48. Capilal and other Commitment

As at 31 March As at1 April

As at 31 March 2017 2016 2015

Estimate amount of contracls remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for {net
off advances)

Others 3.86 6.62 0.59

35.07 39.65 74.24




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited"}
Notes to consalidated flnancial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(AN aments are i INR crores, unless otherunse stated)

49. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

As at 31 March 2017 Asat31March  AsatlApril

2016 2015

i) The principal amount and the interesl due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of each accounting vear

Principal amount due to micro and small enlerprises 530 6.29 737

[nterest due on above - - .
ii) ‘The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year
Principal 0.07 0.94 0.23
Interest 0.00

fii) The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment (which been 0.07 0.07 0.27
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act, 2006,
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting vear 0.25 0.51 044

v} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
dale when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medivm Enterprise
Development Act, 2006,

50. Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes {SBNs)
Amount in INR

ip other
Particulars SBN ( specified denomination Total
bank notes )
notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08/11/2016 4,12,000 2,10,006 6,22,006
(+) peritied receipts * 26,500 20,16,766 20,43,266
(-) permitted paymenls - 10.85,287 10,85.287
(-} amL. deposited in banks 4,38,500 3,18450 7.56,930
Closing, cash in hand as on 30/12/2016 - 8,223,035

* Permitled receipts represents the advance amount returned by group's employees.



Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al amounts are in INR crores, unless otherivise stated)

51. Business combinalion

Nirchem Cenwent Limited {Nirchem) was incorporated on 2nd August 2016 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Nirma Limited to engage in the cement business. Nirma intended 10 acquire the cement and relaled
business of Lafarge India Limited (Lafarge) and due to various approvals and commercial reasons, it acquired such business of Lafarge (the “Acquisition®) by way of acquiring t00% shares of Lafarge from ils
sharehelders. The acquisition of Lafarge by Nirchem was accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of Nirchem in accordance with Ind AS 103 Business Combinations by applying the acquisition
method. The consolidated financial statements as al 4th Ociober, 2016 prepared by management in accordance wilh Ind AS 110, have been adopled by the Board, Under the acquisition method, all identifiable
assets including intangibles, liabilities and contingent habilities of Lafarge wers measured and accounted al the fair value as of the acquisition date. Fair values have been determined by an independent valuer
“The excess of the ¢ost of the acquisition over the fair value of the acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recognized as Goodwill.

Calcnlation of Goodwill
Consideration Paid 8,207 50
Net Assets acquired 5.763.64
Goodwill 2,443.36
Erstwhile acquired Goodwill in books of Lafarge 519.59
Additional Goodwill recognised 1,894.27
Subsequently, pursuant lo the Scheme of Amalgamztion under Sections 230-232 and any other appticable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 tead with Companies (Compromise, Arrangement and

Amalgamation) Rules, 2016, sanctioned by the Company lew tribuna of Mumbai branch and filed with the Registrar of Companies (ReC) on 19th April, 2017, Nirchem Cement Limited has been amalgarmated
wilh Nuveco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited®) w.e.{. 4th October 2016, the Appointed Date.

By wvirtue of guidance provided in App C of Ind AS 108, the above arnalgamation is a ‘commen control business combination’ given the combining entities (Nirchem and Lafarge) are both uhimately controlled by
the same ultimate parent {Nirma Limited) before ani! alter the amaligamation. Accordingly, the business combination has been accounted for using, the pooling of interest method wherein the assets and Yiabilities
of 1he combining entities are reflected at thew carrying anounts as specified in the scheme Le, values as determined under IND AS 103 Business Combmations, which in turn have been pooled from the

 onsolidated Financial Statements of Nirchem as a1 4th October, 2016

Calculation of Capilal Reserve

Particulars Amount Note
Investment in the books of Nirchem (8,207.50)

Equity share capital of Nirchem cancelled 3,000.00

Issue of new equily shares of Nuvoce as per merger scheme [150.00)

Nuvoco old share capital reversed 45641

[IND AS 103 carrving values derived from Nirchem CFS {incremental values}):

Tangible assets 1,610.19 | Refer Note 2
Intangible assets 1,376.31 |Refer Note 4
Goodwill 1,894.27 |Refer Note 4
Deferred tax liabulity (1,033.63)] Refer Note 38

Capital reserve on Merger (1,083.75)
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al amounts are in INR croves, nunless otherwise stated)

56. Transition to Ind AS

For the purposes of reporting as set out in Note 1, the group has transitioned basis of accounting from Indian generally accepted accounting principles
("IGAAP”) to Ind AS. The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and in
the preparation of an opening ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2015 (the “transition date").

In preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet, group has adjusted amounts reported in financial statements prepared in accordance with IGAAP. An explanation of
how the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has affected the group's financial performance, cash flows and financial position is set out in the following tables and
the notes that acgroup the tables. On transition, we did not revise estimates previously made under IGAAF except where required by Ind AS.

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS:

Ind AS optional exemptions

1) Investment in Joint Ventures and subsidiaries

Ind AS 101 allows a first time adopter to record the carrying value of investment in joint venture as per IGAAP or fair value of investment in joint venture at
transition date as deemed cost under Ind AS.

Accordingly, the group has elected to carry its investment in joint venture at IGAAP carrying value on transition date.

2} Deemed Cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the [GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary
adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment
property covered by Ind AS 40 Investment Properties.

Accordingly, the group has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property at their IGAAP carrying value.

3) Decommissioning liabilities

ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 16 prospectively from the transition date. This provides relief from changes in a decommissioning, restoration to
be added or deducted from the cost of asset to which it relates (including mining rights) ; the adjusted depreciable amount of the asset 1s then depreciated
prospectively over remaining useful life.

Accordingly, the group has elected to avail this exemption, it has :

a. measured the liability as at the date of transition;

b. estimated the initial lability by discounting liability measured at historical risk adjusted discount rate

¢. calculated the accumulated depreciation on that amount, as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

4} Business Combination
Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date. This provides relief
from full retrospective application that would require restatement of all business combinations prior to the transition date.

The group elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. Business combinations occurring prior to the
transition date have not been restated.

S} Arrangement containing a lease

IND AS 101 provides the option to determine whether an arrangement existing at date of transition is, or contains, a lease based on the facts and circumstances at
that date and not at lease start date.

Accordingly, the group has elected to determine arrangement existing at the date of transition and not at lease start date.

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

1) Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with
IGAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estumates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2015 are consistent with the estimaltes as at the same date made in conformity with LGAAP, except the following items where
application of IGAAP did not require estimation.

i) FVTOCI - Unquoted equity shares
ii) FVTPL - Debt securities
iii) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al amonnts are int INR crores, unless otheroise stated)

B. Reconciliations between IGAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity and total comprehensive income for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconcihiations from

IGAAP to Ind AS.

Reconciliation of equity as at transition date (1 April 2015)

Notes IGAAT * Adjustments/Reclass Ind AS
ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Property, plant and equipment 1 3,591.84 (8.02) 3,583.82
{b) Capital work in progress 246.77 - 246.77
(¢) Investment property 3 - 1.59 159
(d) Goodwill 549.59 - 549.59
(e} Other intangible assets 2(b) 17.15 2.50 19.65
(f) Intangible assets under development - - -
(g} Financial assets
(i) Investments - - -
(ii) Loans 012 - 0.12
(iii) Other 127.69 - 12769
(h) Other non current assets B 386.10 (87.93) 298.17
4,919.26 (91.86) 4,827.40

2. CURRENT ASSETS
(a) I[nventories 440.25 - 440.25

(b} Financial Assets

(i) Current Investments - - .

(i) Trade receivables 458.19 - 458.19
{iti) Cash and cash equivalents 294.40 - 294.40
{iv) Other bank balances 3.96 3.96
{v) Loans 3.66 - 3.66
{vi) Others 70.58 - 70.58
{d} Other current assets 3 242,29 1.27 243.56
1,513.33 1.27 1,514.60
TOTAL ASSETS 6,432.59 (90.59) 6,342.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 456.41 - 456.41
(b) Other Equity 2(b), 1,3, 4.6 3,52241 (4.00) 3,518.41
3,978.82 {4.00) 3,974.82
LIABILITIES

1. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 300.00 - 300.00

(i) Other 8.50 . 8.50

(b} Provisions 2(c) 2321 5.51 28.72
{c) Deferred tax liabilities {(Net) 6,8 131.15 (90.04) 4111
462.86 (84.53} 378.33

2. CURRENT LIABILITIES
{(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 508.14 (1.18) 506.96
(if} Trade payables 588.35 - 588.35
{iii) Others 424.6% - 424,69
{b} Provisions 146, 54.36 200.36
(¢} Other current liabilities 323,73 (55.24) 26849
1,990.91 (2.06) 1,988.85

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,432.59

* IGAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
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Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2016

Notes IGAAP* Adjustments/Reclass Ind AS
ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 3,656.07 (941) 3,646.66
() Capital work in progress 111.65 - 11165
(c) Investment property 3 - 1.51 1.5t
(d) Goodwill 4 423.95 125.64 549.59
(€} Other intangible assets 2(b) 27.56 (11.09) 1647
(f) Intangible assets under development 12.58 - 12.58
{g) Financial assets
(i) Investments - - -
(ii) Loans - - -
(fii) Other 77.84 - 77.84
{h) Other non current assets 8 420.64 (141.52) 279.12
4,730.29 (34.87) 4,695.42

2. CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 458.19 - 458,19
{b) Financial assets

(i} Current Investments

(ii) Trade receivables 523.37 - 523.37
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 171.44 - 171.44
{iv) Other bank balances - - -
{v) Loans 3.48 - 348
{vi) Others 88.00 - 88.00
{d) Other current assets 3 254.75 (1.60) 253.15
1,499.23 {1.60) 1,497.63
TOTAL ASSETS 6,229.52 {36.47) 6,193.05
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 456.41 - 456.41
(b) Other Equity 2{(b). 1,3,4,6 3.671.27 77.11 3,748.38
4,127.68 77.11 4,204.79
LIABILITIES

1. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 150.00 - 150.00

{ii) Others 7.67 - 7.67

(b} Provisions 2(c) 39.68 (1183} 27.83
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6,8 227.62 (100.73) 126.89
424,97 (112.58) 312.39

2. CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 152.50 - 152.50

(ii} Trade payables 626.09 - 626,09

(iii} Others 40147 - 401.47

(b) Provisions 203.50 46,65 250.15
{c) Other current liabilities 293.31 (47.63) 245.66
1,676.87 {1.00) 1,675.87

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,229.52 {36.47) 6,193.05

* [GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017

(All amounts are i INR crores, unless otherwise shted)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes IGAAP* Adjustments/Reclass Ind AS
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 9,10 5,303.86 654.30 5,958.16
Other income 39.09 - 39.09
TOTAL INCOME 5,342.95 654.30 5.997.25
EXPENSES
Cost of materiats consumed 1.117.11 (5.69) 1,111.42
Purchase of Traded Goods 12.00 (1.7%) 10.21
Power and fuel 889.03 - 889.03
Freight and forwarding charges 1,372.25 - 1,372.25
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress
and stick-in—trade 8 FIo8 (30.99) - (30.99)
Excise duty on sale of goods 9 - 679.63 679.63
Employee Benefits Expenses 5 304.22 412 300.10
Other Expenses §98.48 14.39 912.87
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1,2(b) 3, 4 375.10 (124.64) 25046
Finance costs 2(b), 10 119.52 (31.62) 87.90
TOTAL EXPENSES 5.056.72 526,16 5,582.88
Profit before exceptional items and tax 286.23 128.14 414.37
Exceptional items 4287 - 4287
Profit before tax 243.36 128.14 371.50
Tax expense:
1. Current Tax 33.60 - 53.60
2. MAT credit utilised/ (entitlement) (33.60) - ({53.60)
3. Deferred tax 96.47 434 140.81
4, Tax expense relating to earlier years (0.16) - (0.16)
Total tax expense 96.31 44.34 140.65
Profit/(Loss) for the period 147.05 83.50 230.85
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
I ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
i. Remeasurements gain/ (losses) of post-employment s - 4.12) (4.12)
benefit abligation
ii. Income tax related to above - 143 143
Il Ttems that will be reclassified to profit and loss
i. Deferred gain/ (losses) on cash flow hedge -
ii. Income tax related to above -
147.05

Total comprehensive income for the year

* 1GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(AN airosnts are in INR crores, wnless otherwise stnted)

Reconciliation of Equity as per IGAAP and as per Ind AS

Rs. In Crores

Previous yearended | Asatl April,
Particulars Notes 31032016 2015

Equity as per Previous Indian GAAP 4,127.68 3,978.82
Unwinding of Site restoration liability 2(b) 192 257
Depreciation on site restoration 2(b) (0.19) (0.66)
Depreciation of freehold land used for mining 1 (9.41) 8.02)
Depreciation on investment properties 3 (0.08) -
Reversal of Goodwill amortisation 4 125.64 -
Total impact 117.88 (6.11)
Tax effect of above adjustment 6 (40.77} 211
Equity as per Ind As 4,204.79 3,974.82

The reconciliation of net profit or loss reported in accordance with Indian GAAP to total comprehensive income in accordance with Ind AS is given

below:

. Previous year ended

Particulars Notes 31.03.2016

Net Profit under previous Indian GAAP 147.05
Reclassification of net actuarial loss on defined obligation to other comprehensive incotne 5 412
Unwinding of Site restoration liability 2(b} (0.65)
Depreciation on site restoration 2(b) 047
Depreciation of freehold land used for mining 1 (1.38)
Depreciation on investment properties 3 (0.08)
Reversal of Goodwill amortisation 4 123.64
Total Impact 128.12
Tax effect of above adjustment 6 (44.32)
Net Profit for the period under Ind-AS 230.85
Other Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS (0.88)

Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017
(Al mmornts are in INR erores, unless otherwise staled)

(5]

w

Noftes to the reconciliation
Ind AS adjustment entries:

Under IGAAP, the land acquired for exploration and extraction of limestone is recognised in frechold land and carried at cost. Such freehold land is not depreciated
or impaired. Under Ind AS, such freehold land used for mining is depreciated using unit of production method. Due to this, freehold land has decreased by Rs. 9.41
crore as on 31st March, 16 (1 April, 2015: Rs. 8.02 crore} and retained earnings has decreased by Rs. 6.15 crore (net of deferred tax) as on 31 March 2006 (t April, 2015:
Rs. %.25 crore {net of deferred tax)). Depreciation for the year ended has been increased by Rs. 1.38 crore for the year ended 31 March 2016 and total comprehensive
income decreased by Rs. 0.91 crore (Net of deferred tax).

Under IGAAP, the group has created provision for the mine restoration at undiscounted amount. Mining restoration provision was expensed out till 31 March 2015.
For year ended 31 March 16, group has capitalised mine restoration provision. Under Ind AS. the group has recognised the provision at the present value of estimate
obligation. Fhe unwinding of provision for restoration obligation has been accounted as finance cost and the corresponding asset has been depreciated using unit of
production method. The group has used optional exemption under Ind AS 101 1o measure the provision on transition date.

Due to this:

a) Intangible assets has decreased by Rs. 11.09 crore (Net of amortisation) as on 31st March, 16 (Increased by Rs. 2.50 crore (Net of amortisation) as at 1 April, 2015)
1) Retained earnings has increased by Rs. 1.13 crore (net of deferred tax) as on 31 March 2016 (1 April, 2015; Rs. 1.25 crore {net of deferred tax}). Finance cost for the
vear ended 31 March 2016 has been increased by Rs. 0.65 crore, amortisation has been decreased by Rs.0.47 crore for the year ended 31 March 2016 and total
comprehensive income decreased by Rs. 0.12 crore (Net of deferred tax).

¢} Provision for mining restoration decreased by Rs. 12.81 crore as on 31 March 2016 {increased by Rs. 0.59 crore as on 1 April 2015}

Under IGAAP, the group classified a residential flat owned by it as assets held for sale and did not depreciate it and included in other current assets. Under Ind A5,
the said flat is classified as investment property since the criterion for classifying as assets held for sale as per Ind AS are not met and the said Flat is held for future
undetermined use.

Due to this, Investment praperty has increased by Rs. 151 crore {Net of amortisation) as on 31st March, 16 (st April 2015: Rs. 1,59 crore), Retained earnings has
decreased by Rs. 0.05 crore {net of deferred tax) as on 31 March 2016. Depreciation has been increased by Rs.0.08 crores for the year ended 31 March 2016 and total
comprehensive income decreased by Rs. 0.05 crore (Net of deferred tax).

Under IGAAP, the group has amortised goodwill resulting from acquisitions over 10-35 years. Under Ind AS, goodwill is not amortised but tested for impairment at
least annually.

Due to this, Goodwill has increased by Rs. 125.64 crore as on 31st March, 16. Retained earnings has increased by Rs. 82,16 crore (net of deferred tax) as on 31 March
2016. Amortisation has been decreased by Rs. 125,64 crores for the year ended 31 March 2016 and total comprehensive income increased by Rs. 82.16 crore (Net of
deferred lax).

Under the IGAAP, the actuarial gains and losses were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. Under Ind AS, remeasurements Le. actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Actuarial loss of Rs. 412 crore is reclassified from Empiovee Benefils Expenses to other
comprehensive income, resulting in decrease in Employee Benefits Expenses.

The various trahsitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in relation to these underlying transaction either in
retained earnings or a separate component of equity. The net impact of Ind AS adjustment is deferred tax liabilities of Rs. 40.77 crove as on 31 March 2016 (deferred
tax assets of Rs. 2.11 crore as on 1 April 2015).

The transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has no material impact on the stalement of cash flows.

Material Ind AS reclassification entries:

Under IGAAP, MAT credit entitlernent is presented under other non current assets, However, under Ind AS, MAT credit entitlement is considered as deferred tax
assels and classified accordinghe.

Under IGAAP, sale of goods was presented as net of excise duty. However, under Ind AS, sale of goods includes excise duty. Excise duty on sale of goods is
separately presented on the face of statement of profit and loss. Due to this, Revenue from Operations is increased by Rs. 679.63 crores with corresponding, increase in
excise expenses.

Under IGAAP, cash discount of Rs, 32.27 crores is disclosed under Finance cost. Under Ind AS, cash discount is netted off from
Operations is decreased by Rs. 32.27 crores with corresponding decrease in finance cost.
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